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FooTt LOCKER, INC.

OUR BUSINESSES

ATHLETIC CONNOISSEUR

footlocker.com

ABOUT THE COMPANY

Foot Locker, Inc. (NYSE: FL) is a leading global retailer of The Company also operates a direct-to-customers
athletcally inspired shoes and apparel. Headquartered business ofering athletc footwear, apparel, and
in New York City, the Company operates 3,369 athletc equipment through its Internet, mobile, and catalog
retail stores in 23 countries in North America, Europe, channels. In additon to websites for each of the store
Australia, and New Zealand under the brand names Foot banners, such as footlocker.com, the direct-to-customer
Locker, Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Footacton, business includes Eastbay, a leading destnaton for the
Champs Sports, and CCS. serious athlete.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2007 2008 2009 2010
Sales* $5,437 $5,237 $4,854 $ 5,049
Sales per Gross Square Foot S 352 S 350 S 333 S 360
Adjusted Financial Results:**
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes* S 79 S 164 S 138 S 274
EBIT Margin 1.5% 3.1% 2.8% 5.4%
Net Income* S 62 S 106 $ 85 S 173
Net Income Margin 1.1% 2.0% 1.8% 3.4%
Diluted EPS from contnuing operatons $ 0.40 $ 0.68 $ 0.54 $ 1.10
Return on Invested Capital 4.1% 5.4% 5.3% 8.3%
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investment positon, net of debt* $ 272 $ 266 $ 451 $ 559

* In Millions
** See page 16 of Form 10-K for the reconciliaton of GAAP to non-GAAP adjusted results

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securites laws. Other than statements of historical facts, all statements which address
actvites, events, or developments that the Company antcipates will or may occur in the future, including, but not limited to, such things as future capital expenditures
expansion, strategic plans, fnancial objectves, dividend payments, stock repurchases, growth of the Company’s business and operatons, including future cash fows
revenues, and earnings, and other such maters, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on many assumptons and factors which are
detailed in the Company’s flings with the Securites and Exchange Commission, including the efects of currency fuctuatons, customer demand, fashion trends, compettve
market forces, uncertaintes related to the efect of compettve products and pricing, customer acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail locatons, the
Company’s reliance on a few key vendors for a majority of its merchandise purchases (including a signifcant porton from one key vendor), pandemics and similar major
health concerns, unseasonable weather, further deterioraton of global fnancial markets, economic conditons worldwide, further deterioraton of business and economic
conditons, any changes in business, politcal and economic conditons due to the threat of future terrorist actvites in the United States or in other parts of the world and
related U.S. military acton overseas, the ability of the Company to execute its business and strategic plans efectvely with regard to each of its business units, and risks
associated with global product sourcing, including politcal instability, changes in import regulatons, and disruptons to transportaton services and distributon. Any changes
in such assumptons or factors could produce signifcantly diferent results. The Company undertakes no obligaton to update forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new informaton, future events, or otherwise.






“THE STRATEGIES OUR TEAM IDENTIFIED AND
BEGAN IMPLEMENTING TWO yEARS AGO HAVE
ELEVATED OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TO

NEW HEIGHTS.”

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

In 2011, our Company achieved the highest level of
proftability in its history as an athletc footwear and apparel
business. We started out two years ago with a vision --- to be
the leading global retailer of athletically inspired shoes and
apparel --- and we have made tremendous progress towards
achieving that vision.

PROGRESS TOWARDS FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

To guide us towards achieving our vision, our leadership
team established several long-term fnancial objectves at the
beginning of 2010. At the tme, we saw them as “stretch”
targets, but just two years later, we are pleased to report that
we not only made substantal progress on each of them, we
have already met several of the goals, as shown below:

2009 2011 Objectve
Sales (billions) $4.9 $5.6 $6.0
Sales per Gross Square Foot $333 $406 $400
Adjusted EBIT Margin 2.8% 7.9% 8.0%
Adjusted Net Income Margin 1.8% 5.0% 5.0%
Return on Invested Capital 5.3% 11.8% 10.0%

It is clear from these results that the strategies our team
identfed and began implementng two years ago have proven
to be the right ones for our business, and solid executon at
every level of the Foot Locker organizaton has made it possible
to elevate our fnancial and operatonal performance to new
heights.

Other key fnancial accomplishments in 2011 include earning
$1.82 per share, a 68 percent increase over 2010, and the
highest level the Company has achieved since becoming Foot
Locker, Inc. in 2001. This result was driven by a comparable
store sales gain of 9.8 percent, an exceptonally strong result

coming as it did on top of last year’s gain of 5.8 percent. Our
gross margin rate also improved signifcantly, to 31.9 percent
from 30.0 percent, while our selling, general, and administratve
expenses also improved to a rate of 22.1 percent, down from
22.5 percent in 2010.

STEPS TO ENHANCE SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Over the last two years, we have focused on sales growth
and productvity improvements to enable us to invest
in improving our business. Our strong fnancial positon
provides us with the fexibility and confdence to take steps
to enhance shareholder returns, now and in the future. First,
we substantally increased our capital expenditure program
in 2011, to $159 million including key money, in order to take
advantage of the many new, excitng, and, we believe, proftable
opportunites in our business. These investment opportunites
include new store growth, redesigned store formats, enhanced
Internet and mobile platorms, and technology initatves to
drive efciency and connect beter with our customers across
our brand banners, geographies, and channels.

Second, in February 2012, we announced a 9 percent
increase in our common stock dividend, on top of the previous
year’s 10 percent increase. This latest increase takes efect with
the dividend payment in our frst quarter of 2012. Finally, we
also announced a new three-year $400 million share repurchase
program, having repurchased $104 million of our common
stock in 2011. These actons demonstrate our confdence in our
ability to maintain a strong, consistent performance.

UPDATED STRATEGIES TO ACHIEVE
THE NEXT LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE

Last year, | suggested that 2010 would be seen as an
infecton point for creatng sustained increased value for our
shareholders. More than an infecton point, | now believe
2010 actually was a springboard towards a higher level of
performance in 2011 and beyond. | say that because, as strong
as our performance was in 2011, we contnue to learn more
about how best to serve our customers, and we have identfed
additonal opportunites that we believe will drive substantal
improvements in our results in the years ahead.

In light of our progress over the frst two years of our long-
range plan, our senior leadership team recently completed a
comprehensive review of our strategies and fnancial objectves.
Our vision remains consistent, as do the essental elements
of our strategy. We have, however, made some meaningful
enhancements. The pages that follow in this year’s annual
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report will highlight the progress we have made in executng
our six original strategies, as well as the key changes to the
strategies that we believe will drive even stronger performance
in the years ahead.

Beginning in 2012, our strategic priorites are to:

e create a clear customer focus, to drive performance in
our core athletc banners

= make our stores and internet sites more excitng,
relevant places to shop and buy

« deliver exceptonal growth in high-potental
business segments

e aggressively pursue brand expansion opportunites
< increase the productvity of all of our assets
e build on our industry leading retail team

NEW LONG-TERM FINANCIAL OBJECTIVES

Given the progress we have made so far toward our original
fnancial objectves, we have established a new set of long-term
fnancial goals for the period from 2012 through 2016. Overall,
we aspire to consistently be a top quartle performer, with:

* Sales of $7.5 billion

e Sales per Gross Square Foot of $500

e Earnings Before Interest and Taxes of 11% of Sales
* Net Income of 7% of Sales

e Return on Invested Capital of 14%

e Inventory Turnover of 3+ times

As | noted, two years ago we believed that the objectves we
established then represented “stretch” goals, since some of the
goals were set at levels beyond what we had achieved in the
past. All of these new goals represent targets well beyond what
we have ever achieved before as an athletc company --- we
believe this will be the next level of performance in the evoluton
of our Company. Driven by the initatves you will see described
on the coming pages, we believe we are well-positoned to
achieve these targets. The success that we antcipate, though,
will not come in a straight line. We will remain focused, and
navigate diligently through any setbacks, whether these are the
result of challenges in the external environment or due to some
element of our own executon. We believe that we have the
resources --- our strong team, our core values, our fnances,
our market positon, and the strong partnerships we have
formed with our leading vendors --- to become and remain a top
performer, not just in the athletc industry, but in all of retail.

CONCLUSION
As | travel around the country and the globe meetng
customers and associates in our stores, and visitng the staf
of our various operatng divisions and support locatons, | am
constantly impressed with the dedicaton and engagement of
our associates, guided by our core values, toward executng
our strategies and thereby reaching our key operatonal and
fnancial goals. | am also gratfed by the positve response and
support of our key partners, including our world-class suppliers,
our landlords, and other organizatons that contribute to our
success. The exceptonal products and services we are delivering
to our customers are the result of the hard work of our
associates and the elevated collaboraton we have achieved with
our partners. Itis a privilege to work with such an outstanding
group of people, and | extend my sincere thanks to each of them.
| am also indebted to our Board of Directors, who contnue
to provide our management team with guidance and support
as we work to positon Foot Locker, Inc. as an industry leader,
both operatonally and fnancially. This spring, James Preston
will step down as our lead director and Nicholas DiPaolo will take
his place. | want to express to Jim my great appreciaton for his
years of service as lead director, and his leadership and counsel
to me. | am pleased that Jim will remain on our Board. | am also
pleased that Nick will be assuming the role of lead director.
His extensive business experience and knowledge of our
Company will allow him to add great value as our lead director.
Finally, | am extremely grateful to you, our shareholders.
| have met many of you over the last two years, and | truly
appreciate your ongoing confdence and encouragement as we
execute our strategies to achieve our vision.
I am convinced that all of the associates at Foot Locker, Inc.
look forward to putng into practce the updated strategies
and initatves that we have outlined in this annual report, and
contnuing on our path to being the leading global retailer of
athletcally inspired shoes and apparel.

Ok

Ken C. Hicks
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executve Ofcer
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EXCITING PLACES TO SHOP

e make our stores and internet sites more

We have signifcantly elevated the look and feel of our a “Genius” ratng. We have driven increased tra¥c on our
stores. First, in many of our stores, we have realigned websites by adding customer engagement features such as
the presentaton of product along the shoe walls in order the Eastbay Athlete Resource Center. ARC is a destnaton for
to increase productvity, and we integrated our apparel athletes to compare themselves to elite compettors and see
assortments with the footwear in order to tell compelling suggested drills and exercises to close the gap.
functonality and color stories. We are testng excitng We have introduced Striperpedia, an on-line collecton
new store formats in Champs Sports and Europe, and are of knowledge from our associates to help customers

designing a new format for Foot Locker in the United States.  understand more about the athletc footwear and apparel
We have also introduced new selling skills training, focused we ofer, and to share our passion for sneakers. We also

on customer needs, in stores around the world. launched Sneakerpedia, an on-line community powered
Second, we have upgraded the features and functonality by Foot Locker dedicated to the sneaker enthusiast. This

of our Internet and mobile sites, signifcantly improving the innovatve efort won the Gold Lion Award in the Cyber

cross-channel experience. Our customers are increasingly category at the 2011 Cannes Festval of Creatvity.

comfortable switching back and forth between our stores
and on-line in their relatonship with us, and we contnue
to innovate in order to deepen our connecton with our
customers.

Our Eastbay site was recognized by Internet Retailer
Magazine as the best mobile-optmized site of the Top 100
Internet retailers, and 8thBridge ranked Eastbay sixth in
Social Commerce |Q among top Internet retailers, giving us

Our primary goals in this area are to:

« tell powerful product stories and clearly communicate
with our customers across channels

« create dynamic, productve, engaging store environments

« implement programs to improve customer service and
sales productvity

< increase customer engagement, with compelling digital
and store customer experiences
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DELIVER EXCEPTIONAL GROWTH

e deliver exceptional growth in high-potential business segments

A substantal porton of the growth that we have
experienced over the last two years has been the result
of improving the Company’s core businesses. We drove
sales increases and proft margins in footwear, apparel, and
accessories. Within footwear, we posted top line gains in
men’s, women'’s, and kids’. We also demonstrated strength
in all major categories of footwear: basketball, running,
and casual. Finally, we had gains in both the domestc and
internatonal markets, as well as on-line.

We have paid partcular atenton to developing a
compelling apparel assortment, and so far the results have
been encouraging. We partnered with several key brands to
deliver improved apparel product, which produced double
digit sales gains in the United States. We also created our
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own Actra brand for our women’s business; elevated the
Sneaker Freak label in Europe; launched Champs Sports
Gear; and introduced EVAPOR (a proprietary moisture
management technology) and other enhanced features in
our private label oferings, as we shif away from commodity
items.

In the future, we will focus additonal energy and resources
on our high-potental families of business in order to:

« develop a leadership positon in the Athletc Apparel
business

« expand Kids’ and Women'’s to play more signifcant roles
in all of our businesses

e build a meaningful Team Services and Sales business



320 Basis Point Increase
in Net Income Margin

We delivered strong sales and margin improvements
across all of our product categories — footwear,
apparel, and accessories. These improvements came in
all channels, including in-store and on-line. The gains
were also worldwide, as every region in which we
operate — North America, Europe, and Asia/Pacific —

delivered higher profits.

Net Income Margin

5.0%

2009 2010 2011
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EXPANSION OPPORTUNITIES

e aggressively pursue brand

Through our cross-channel eforts, we have driven growth
in our store banner.com sales well into the double digits,
while at the same tme leveraging our industry-leading
Eastbay direct-to-customer business. On the ground, we
accelerated our new store openings in Europe, including our
frst stores in the Czech Republic and Poland; we expanded
our successful House of Hoops shops to a total of 52; and
we successfully applied learnings from our RUN concept to
elevate our running assortments in all Foot Locker stores.
These and many other eforts combined to produce total
sales growth of 11.4 percent in 2011, to $5.6 billion.

Looking ahead, the primary initatves to capture brand
expansion opportunites are to:

< drive digital sales and marketng for all brick-and-mortar
banners and Eastbay

= expand our presence in Europe

< invest strategically in new country opportunites

e grow potentally signifcant businesses, such as House of
Hoops and CCS

< innovate by testng new formats and merchandise ideas

13
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INCREASE PRODUCTIVITy

sales per gross square foot target of $400, achieving sales of

e increase the productivity of all of our assets

We have achieved meaningful improvements in several
measures of productvity in 2011. First, we surpassed our

$406 per square foot. Similarly, our sales per payroll hour
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have grown over 15 percent since 2009.

Second, we contnued our long-standing history of
disciplined expense management by lowering our selling,
general and administratve expense rate from 22.5 percent
of sales to 22.1 percent. This contributed signifcantly to a
strong proft “fow through.” In other words, we are taking
to the botom line a high proporton of every extra sales
dollar we earn.

Third, we achieved these sales gains while holding
inventory almost fat. Our inventory is very fresh, allowing

us to fow in new product assortments frequently in order to
meet customer preferences. Improving our inventory turns
is a key focus for our entre team.

Combined, these achievements produced a return on
invested capital (ROIC) in 2011 of 11.8 percent, up from just
5.3 percent in 2009 and above our objectve of 10 percent.

To elevate productvity even further, we intend to:

« drive space planning and performance

< increase selling staf productvity and service

= improve our inventory turns and merchandise fow

» further increase ROIC

< invest in technology upgrades to increase our
efectveness
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LEADING RETAIL TEAM

¢ build on our industry leading retail team

Our associates are key to our strategy; therefore,
atractng, developing, and retaining the industry’s leading
retail team is critcal to our success. Every day, our
associates work on the sales foors in our stores, on the
loading docks at distributon centers, and at headquarters
oFces around the world. Itis through their eforts that Foot
Locker, Inc. will be the global leading retailer of athletcally
inspired shoes and apparel.

We have revamped associate selling skills training,
focused on meetng customer needs. We have upgraded
key talent management processes, such as executve
development and succession planning, in both feld and

headquarters organizatons. Above all, we have developed,
communicated, and reinforced our Company’s core values.

In order to build on our progress, our goals for 2012 and

beyond are to:

= atract, develop, and retain the best people in retail

» cultvate a more sales-oriented and customer-centric
culture and skill set

= increase diversity at all levels, to beter refect our
customer base

= recognize and reinforce associate behaviors that support
our core values

16
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The core values of our Company extend beyond the
workplace. Just as we are elevatng our strategic goals and
Tnancial objectves, we are also elevatng our eforts to serve
the communites in which we work and live.

A prime example of such eforts is the Foot Locker Scholar
Athletes program that the Foot Locker Foundaton, Inc.
launched in 2011. This program provides 20 winners with
$20,000 each in scholarship funding for college. The program
also awards three Company associates with $5,000 in college
scholarship funding.

In additon, we sponsored the Champs Sports Bowl for
the eighth year in a row in December. This sponsorship also
provides college funding to talented scholar-athletes.

>

¥ UNCF

A mind is a terrible
thing to waste

foot Locker
SCHOLAR ATHLETES

MUKING ¢

AGAINST BREAST CANCER

Through our annual “On Our Feet” event, the Foot Locker
Foundaton contnued to be a major source of scholarship
funds for the United Negro College Fund. In additon to
UNCF, we are long-standing major supporters of several
other worthy organizatons, including the American Cancer
Society, Fred Jordan Mission, and the Two Ten Footwear
Foundaton.

In 2012, the Company is also introducing a personal day
for associates to partcipate in a volunteer actvity of his or
her choice. As acompany, we take pride in adding value
within our communites, and will build on a strong traditon
of service through actve support of worthwhile causes
and organizatons, focused primarily on youth sports and
educaton, that are meaningful to our customers, associates,
suppliers, and shareholders.

STRIDES
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PART 1

Item 1. Business

General

Foot Locker, Inc., incorporated under the laws of the State of New York in 1989, is a leading global retailer
of athletically inspired shoes and apparel, operating 3,369 primarily mall-based stores in the United States,
Canada, Europe, Australia, and New Zealand as of January 28, 2012. Foot Locker, Inc. and its subsidiaries
hereafter are referred to as the “Registrant,” “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us.” Information regarding the
business is contained under the “Business Overview” section in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

The Company maintains a website on the Internet at www.footlocker-inc.com. The Company’s filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, including its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports are available free of charge
through this website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with or furnished to the SEC by
clicking on the “SEC Filings” link. The Corporate Governance section of the Company’s corporate website
contains the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Committee Charters, and the Company’s Code
of Business Conduct for directors, officers and employees, including the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Accounting Officer. Copies of these documents may also be obtained free
of charge upon written request to the Company’s Corporate Secretary at 112 West 34™ Street, New York,
N.Y. 10120. The Company intends to promptly disclose amendments to the Code of Business Conduct and
waivers of the Code for directors and executive officers on the Corporate Governance section of the
Company’s corporate website.

Information Regarding Business Segments and Geographic Areas

The financial information concerning business segments, divisions and geographic areas is contained
under the “Business Overview” and “Segment Information” sections in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Information regarding sales, operating
results and identifiable assets of the Company by business segment and by geographic area is
contained under the Segment Information note in “Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”

The service marks and trademarks appearing in this report (except for Nike, Inc. and Alshaya Trading Co.
W.L.L.) are owned by Foot Locker, Inc. or its subsidiaries.

Employees
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had 13,080 full-time and 26,077 part-time employees at
January 28, 2012. The Company considers employee relations to be satisfactory.

Competition

Financial information concerning competition is contained under the “Business Risk” section in the
Financial Instruments and Risk Management note in “Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”

Merchandise Purchases

Financial information concerning merchandise purchases is contained under the “Liquidity” section in
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
under the “Business Risk” section in the Financial Instruments and Risk Management note in “Item 8.
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”



Item 1A. Risk Factors

The statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”) that are not historical
facts, including, but not limited to, statements regarding our expected financial position, business and
financing plans found in “Item 1. Business” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Please also see “Disclosure Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements.” Our actual results may differ materially due to the risks and uncertainties
discussed in this Annual Report, including those discussed below. Additional risks and uncertainties that
we do not presently know about or that we currently consider to be insignificant may also affect our
business operations and financial performance.

Our inability to implement our strategic long range plan may have an adverse affect on our future
results.

Our ability to successfully implement and execute our long range plan is dependent on many factors. Our
strategies may require significant capital investment and management attention, which may result in the
diversion of these resources from our core business and other business issues and opportunities.
Additionally, any new initiative is subject to certain risks including customer acceptance, competition,
product differentiation, and the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. If we cannot successfully
execute our strategic growth initiatives or if the long range plan does not adequately address the
challenges or opportunities we face, our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
affected.

The businesses in which we operate are highly competitive.

The retail athletic footwear and apparel business is highly competitive with relatively low barriers to
entry. Our athletic footwear and apparel operations compete primarily with athletic footwear specialty
stores, sporting goods stores and superstores, department stores, discount stores, traditional shoe stores,
and mass merchandisers, many of which are units of national or regional chains that have significant
financial and marketing resources. The principal competitive factors in our markets are price, quality,
selection of merchandise, reputation, store location, advertising, and customer service. Our success also
depends on our ability to differentiate ourselves from our competitors with respect to shopping
convenience, a quality assortment of available merchandise and superior customer service. We cannot
assure you that we will continue to be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors.
Our expansion into markets served by our competitors and entry of new competitors or expansion of
existing competitors into our markets could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. Although we sell merchandise via the Internet, a significant shift in
customer buying patterns to purchasing athletic footwear, athletic apparel, and sporting goods via the
Internet could have a material adverse effect on our business results.

In addition, all of our significant vendors distribute products directly through the Internet and others may
follow. Some vendors operate retail stores and some have indicated that further retail stores will open.
Should this continue to occur, and if our customers decide to purchase directly from our vendors, it could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The industry in which we operate is dependent upon fashion trends, customer preferences, and
other fashion-related factors.

The athletic footwear and apparel industry is subject to changing fashion trends and customer preferences.
We cannot guarantee that our merchandise selection will accurately reflect customer preferences when it
is offered for sale or that we will be able to identify and respond quickly to fashion changes, particularly
given the long lead times for ordering much of our merchandise from vendors. A substantial portion of our
highest margin sales are to young males (ages 12 - 25), many of whom we believe purchase athletic
footwear and athletic and licensed apparel as a fashion statement and are frequent purchasers. Any shift in
fashion trends that would make athletic footwear or licensed apparel less attractive to these customers
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.



If we do not successfully manage our inventory levels, our operating results will be adversely
affected.

We must maintain sufficient inventory levels to operate our business successfully. However, we also must
guard against accumulating excess inventory. For example, we order the bulk of our athletic footwear four
to six months prior to delivery to our stores. If we fail to anticipate accurately either the market for the
merchandise in our stores or our customers’ purchasing habits, we may be forced to rely on markdowns or
promotional sales to dispose of excess or slow moving inventory, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

A change in the relationship with any of our key vendors or the unavailability of our key products
at competitive prices could affect our financial health.

Our business is dependent to a significant degree upon our ability to obtain exclusive product and the
ability to purchase brand-name merchandise at competitive prices. In addition, our vendors provide
volume discounts, cooperative advertising, and markdown allowances, as well as the ability to negotiate
returns of excess or unneeded merchandise. We cannot be certain that such assistance from our vendors
will continue in the future.

The Company purchased approximately 82 percent of its merchandise in 2011 from its top five vendors
and expects to continue to obtain a significant percentage of its athletic product from these vendors in
future periods. Approximately 61 percent was purchased from one vendor — Nike, Inc. (“Nike”). Each of
our operating divisions is highly dependent on Nike; they individually purchase 45 to 77 percent of their
merchandise from Nike. Merchandise that is high profile and in high demand is allocated by our vendors
based upon their internal criteria. Although we have generally been able to purchase sufficient quantities
of this merchandise in the past, we cannot be certain that our vendors will continue to allocate sufficient
amounts of such merchandise to us in the future. Our inability to obtain merchandise in a timely manner
from major suppliers (particularly Nike) as a result of business decisions by our suppliers or any
disruption in the supply chain could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
and results of operations. Because of our strong dependence on Nike, any adverse development in Nike’s
reputation, financial condition or results of operations or the inability of Nike to develop and manufacture
products that appeal to our target customers could also have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. We cannot be certain that we will be able to acquire merchandise at
competitive prices or on competitive terms in the future.

These risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

We depend on mall traffic and our ability to identify suitable store locations.

Our stores in the United States and Canada are located primarily in enclosed regional and neighborhood
malls. Our sales are dependent, in part, on the volume of mall traffic. Mall traffic may be adversely affected
by, among other things, economic downturns, the closing of anchor department stores, and a decline in the
popularity of mall shopping among our target customers. Further, any terrorist act, natural disaster, or
public health concern that decreases the level of mall traffic, or that affects our ability to open and operate
stores in affected areas, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

To take advantage of customer traffic and the shopping preferences of our customers, we need to maintain
or acquire stores in desirable locations such as in regional and neighborhood malls anchored by major
department stores. We cannot be certain that desirable mall locations will continue to be available. Some
traditional enclosed malls are experiencing significantly lower levels of customer traffic, driven by the
overall poor economic conditions, as well as the closure of certain mall anchor tenants.

Several large landlords dominate the ownership of prime malls, particularly in the United States, and
because of our dependence upon these landlords for a substantial number of our locations, any significant
erosion of their financial condition or our relationships with these landlords would negatively affect our
ability to obtain and retain store locations. Additionally, further landlord consolidation may negatively
affect our ability to negotiate favorable lease terms.



The effects of natural disasters, terrorism, acts of war, and public health issues may adversely
affect our business.

Natural disasters, including earthquakes, hurricanes, floods, and tornados may affect store and distribution
center operations. In addition, acts of terrorism, acts of war, and military action both in the United States
and abroad can have a significant effect on economic conditions and may negatively affect our ability to
purchase merchandise from vendors for sale to our customers. Public health issues, such as flu or other
pandemics, whether occurring in the United States or abroad, could disrupt our operations and result in a
significant part of our workforce being unable to operate or maintain our infrastructure or perform other
tasks necessary to conduct our business. Additionally, public health issues may disrupt the operations of
our suppliers, our operations, our customers, or have an adverse effect on customer demand. We may be
required to suspend operations in some or all of our locations, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Any significant declines in public safety or
uncertainties regarding future economic prospects that affect customer spending habits could have a
material adverse effect on customer purchases of our products.

We may experience fluctuations in and cyclicality of our comparable-store sales results.

Our comparable-store sales have fluctuated significantly in the past, on both an annual and a quarterly
basis, and we expect them to continue to fluctuate in the future. A variety of factors affect our
comparable-store sales results, including, among others, fashion trends, the highly competitive retail store
sales environment, economic conditions, timing of promotional events, changes in our merchandise mix,
calendar shifts of holiday periods, and weather conditions. Many of our products, particularly high-end
athletic footwear and licensed apparel, represent discretionary purchases. Accordingly, customer demand
for these products could decline in a recession or if our customers develop other priorities for their
discretionary spending. These risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

Our operations may be adversely affected by economic or political conditions in other countries.

A significant portion of our sales and operating income for 2011 was attributable to our operations in
Europe, Canada, New Zealand, and Australia. As a result, our business is subject to the risks associated with
doing business outside of the United States such as foreign customer preferences, political unrest,
disruptions or delays in shipments, changes in economic conditions in countries in which we operate, and
labor and employment practices in non-U.S. jurisdictions that may differ significantly from those that
prevail in the United States. Although we enter into forward foreign exchange contracts and option
contracts to reduce the effect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, our operations may be
adversely affected by significant changes in the value of the U.S. dollar as it relates to certain foreign
currencies.

In addition, because we and our suppliers have a substantial amount of our products manufactured in



Macroeconomic developments, such as the recent recessions in Europe and the debt crisis in
certain countries in the European Union, could negatively affect our ability to conduct business in
those geographies.

The Company’s performance is subject to global economic conditions and the related impact on consumer
spending levels. The continuing European sovereign debt crisis could cause the value of the euro to
deteriorate, reducing the purchasing power of our European customers and also reducing the value of our
European earnings when translated into U.S. dollars. This uncertainty about global economic conditions
poses a risk as consumers and businesses postpone spending in response to tighter credit, unemployment,
negative financial news, and/or declines in income or asset values, which could have a material negative
effect on demand for our products and services.

As a retailer that is dependent upon consumer discretionary spending, our results of operations are
sensitive to changes in macroeconomic conditions. Our customers may have less money for discretionary
purchases as a result of job losses, foreclosures, bankruptcies, increased fuel and energy costs, higher
interest rates, higher taxes, reduced access to credit and lower home prices. There is also a risk that if
negative economic conditions persist for a long period of time or worsen, consumers may make
long-lasting changes to their discretionary purchasing behavior, including less frequent discretionary
purchases on a more permanent basis. These and other economic factors could adversely affect demand
for the Company’s products and services and the Company’s financial condition and operating results.

Instability in the financial markets may adversely affect our business.

Past disruptions in the U.S. and global credit and equity markets made it difficult for many businesses to
obtain financing on acceptable terms. Although we currently have a revolving credit agreement in place
until 2017 and do not have any borrowings under it (other than amounts used for standby letters of
credit), tightening of credit markets could make it more difficult for us to access funds, refinance our
existing indebtedness, enter into agreements for new indebtedness or obtain funding through the issuance
of the Company’s securities. Additionally, our borrowing costs can be affected by independent rating
agencies’ ratings, which are based largely on our performance as measured by credit metrics, including
lease-adjusted leverage ratios.

The Company relies on a few key vendors for a majority of its merchandise purchases (including a
significant portion from one key vendor). The inability of key suppliers to access liquidity, or the
insolvency of key suppliers, could lead to their failure to deliver our merchandise. Our inability to obtain
merchandise in a timely manner from major suppliers could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

If our long-lived assets, goodwill or other intangible assets become impaired, we may need to
record significant non-cash impairment charges.

We review our long-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets when events indicate that the
carrying value of such assets may be impaired. Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment if impairment indicators arise and, at a minimum, annually. We determine fair
value based on a combination of a discounted cash flow approach and market-based approach. If an
impairment trigger is identified, the carrying value is compared to its estimated fair value and provisions
for impairment are recorded as appropriate. Impairment losses are significantly affected by estimates of
future operating cash flows and estimates of fair value. Our estimates of future operating cash flows are
identified from our strategic long-range plans, which are based upon our experience, knowledge, and
expectations; however, these estimates can be affected by such factors as our future operating results,
future store profitability, and future economic conditions, all of which can be difficult to predict. Any
significant deterioration in macroeconomic conditions could affect the fair value of our long-lived assets,
goodwill and other intangible assets and could result in future impairment charges, which would adversely
affect our results of operations.



Material changes in the market value of the securities we hold may adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

At January 28, 2012, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $851 million. The majority of our investments
were short-term deposits in highly-rated banking institutions. As of January 28, 2012, the Company had
$498 million of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign jurisdictions. We regularly monitor our
counterparty credit risk and mitigate our exposure by making short-term investments only in highly-rated
institutions and by limiting the amount we invest in any one institution. The Company continually
monitors the creditworthiness of its counterparties. At January 28, 2012, almost all of the investments
were in institutions rated A or better from a major credit rating agency. Despite those ratings, it is possible
that the value or liquidity of our investments may decline due to any number of factors, including general
market conditions and bank-specific credit issues.

The trust which holds the assets of our U.S. pension plan has assets totaling $546 million at
January 28, 2012. The fair values of these assets held in the trust are compared to the plan’s projected
benefit obligation to determine the pension funding liability. We attempt to mitigate risk through
diversification, and we regularly monitor investment risk on our portfolio through quarterly investment
portfolio reviews and periodic asset and liability studies. Despite these measures, it is possible that the
value of our portfolio may decline in the future due to any number of factors, including general market
conditions and credit issues. Such declines could have an impact on the funded status of our pension plans
and future funding requirements.

Our financial results may be adversely impacted by higher-than-expected tax rates or exposure to
additional tax liabilities.

We are a U.S.-based multinational company subject to tax in multiple U.S. and foreign tax jurisdictions. Our
provision for income taxes is based on a jurisdictional mix of earnings, statutory rates, and enacted tax
rules, including transfer pricing. Significant judgment is required in determining our provision for income
taxes and in evaluating our tax positions on a worldwide basis. Our effective tax rate could be adversely
affected by a number of factors, including shifts in the mix of pretax profits and losses by tax jurisdiction,
our ability to use tax credits, changes in tax laws or related interpretations in the jurisdictions in which we
operate, and tax assessments and related interest and penalties resulting from income tax audits.

A substantial portion of our cash and investments is invested outside of the U.S. As we plan to permanently
reinvest our foreign earnings, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, we have not provided for U.S. federal and state
income taxes or foreign withholding taxes that may result from future remittances of undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Recent proposals to reform U.S. tax rules may result in a reduction or
elimination of the deferral of U.S. income tax on our foreign earnings, which could adversely affect our
effective tax rate. Any of these changes could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.

In addition, our products are subject to import and excise duties and/or sales or value-added taxes in
many jurisdictions. Fluctuations in tax rates and duties and changes in tax legislation or regulation could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Complications in our distribution centers and other factors affecting the distribution of
merchandise may affect our business.

We operate four distribution centers worldwide to support our businesses. In addition to the distribution
centers that we operate, we have third-party arrangements to support our operations in the U.S., Canada,
Australia, and New Zealand. If complications arise with any facility or any facility is severely damaged or
destroyed, the Company’s other distribution centers may not be able to support the resulting additional
distribution demands. This may adversely affect our ability to deliver inventory on a timely basis. We
depend upon third-party carriers for shipment of a significant amount of merchandise. An interruption in
service by these carriers for any reason could cause temporary disruptions in our business, a loss of sales
and profits, and other material adverse effects.






Our reliance on key management, store and field associates.

Future performance will depend upon our ability to attract, retain, and motivate our executive and senior
management team, as well as store personnel and field management. Our success depends to a significant
extent both upon the continued services of our current executive and senior management team, as well as
our ability to attract, hire, motivate, and retain additional qualified management in the future. Competition
for key executives in the retail industry is intense, and our operations could be adversely affected if we
cannot attract and retain qualified associates. Many of the store and field associates are in entry level or
part-time positions with historically high rates of turnover. Our ability to meet our labor needs while
controlling costs is subject to external factors such as unemployment levels, prevailing wage rates,
minimum wage legislation, and changing demographics. If we are unable to attract and retain quality
associates, our ability to meet our growth goals or to sustain expected levels of profitability may be
compromised. In addition, a large number of our retail employees are paid the prevailing minimum wage,
which if increased would negatively affect our profitability.

We face risks arising from recent activity by the National Labor Relations Board in the
United States.

There have been recent decisions, and administrative regulations issued, by the National Labor Relations
Board that, if not successfully challenged, would significantly change the nature of how union elections are
to be conducted in the United States. These recent decisions and regulations could impose more labor
relations requirements and union activity on our business conducted in the United States, thereby
potentially increasing our costs, and could have a material adverse effect on our overall competitive
position.

Health care reform could adversely affect our business.

In 2010, Congress enacted comprehensive health care reform legislation which, among other things,
includes guaranteed coverage requirements, eliminates pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and
lifetime maximum limits, restricts the extent to which policies can be rescinded, and imposes new and
significant taxes on health insurers and health care benefits. Due to the breadth and complexity of the
health reform legislation, the current lack of implementing regulations and interpretive guidance, and the
phased-in nature of the implementation, it is difficult to predict the overall effect of the statute and related
regulations on our business over the coming years. Possible adverse effects of the health reform legislation
include increased costs, exposure to expanded liability and requirements for us to revise ways in which we
conduct business.

Legislative or regulatory initiatives related to global warming/climate change concerns may
negatively affect our business.

There has been an increasing focus and significant debate on global climate change recently, including
increased attention from regulatory agencies and legislative bodies globally. This increased focus may lead
to new initiatives directed at regulating an as-yet unspecified array of environmental matters. Legislative,
regulatory or other efforts in the United States to combat climate change could result in future increases in
taxes or in the cost of transportation and utilities, which could decrease our operating profits and could
necessitate future additional investments in facilities and equipment. We are unable to predict the
potential effects that any such future environmental initiatives may have on our business.

We may be adversely affected by regulatory and litigation developments.

We are exposed to the risk that federal or state legislation may negatively impact our operations. Changes
in federal or state wage requirements, employee rights, health care, social welfare or entitlement programs
such as health insurance, paid leave programs, or other changes in workplace regulation could increase
our cost of doing business or otherwise adversely affect our operations. Additionally, we are regularly
involved in various litigation matters, including class actions and patent infringement claims, which arise
in the ordinary course of our business. Litigation or regulatory developments could adversely affect our
business operations and financial performance.



Failure to fully comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could negatively affect
our business, the price of our common stock and market confidence in our reported financial
information.

We continue to document, test, and monitor our internal controls over financial reporting in order to
satisfy all of the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; however we cannot be
assured that our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal controls over financial reporting will
prove to be completely adequate in the future. Failure to fully comply with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could negatively affect our business, the price of our common stock, and
market confidence in our reported financial information.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The properties of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries consist of land, leased stores,
administrative facilities, and distribution centers. Gross square footage and total selling area for the
Athletic Stores segment at the end of 2011 were approximately 12.45 and 7.38 million square feet,
respectively. These properties, which are primarily leased, are located in the United States, Canada, various
European countries, Australia, and New Zealand.

The Company currently operates four distribution centers, of which two are owned and two are leased,
occupying an aggregate of 2.4 million square feet. Three of the four distribution centers are located in the
United States and one is in the Netherlands.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Information regarding the Company’s legal proceedings is contained in the Legal Proceedings note under
“Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.



Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information with respect to Executive Officers of the Company, as of March 26, 2012, is set forth below:

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer Ken C. Hicks
Executive Vice President and Group President — Retail Stores Richard A. Johnson
Executive Vice President — Operations Support Robert W. McHugh
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Lauren B. Peters
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary Gary M. Bahler
Senior Vice President — Real Estate Jeffrey L. Berk
Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer Peter D. Brown
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer Giovanna Cipriano
Senior Vice President — Human Resources Laurie J. Petrucci
Vice President, Treasurer and Investor Relations John A. Maurer

Ken C. Hicks, age 59, has served as Chairman of the Board since January 31, 2010 and President and Chief
Executive Officer since August 17, 2009. Mr. Hicks served as President and Chief Merchandising Officer of
J.C. Penney Company, Inc. (“JC Penney”) from 2005 through 2009. He was President and Chief Operating
Officer of Stores and Merchandise Operations of JC Penney from 2002 through 2004, and he served as
President of Payless ShoeSource, Inc. from 1999 to 2002. Mr. Hicks is also a director of Avery Dennison
Corporation.

Richard A. Johnson, age 54, has served as Executive Vice President and Group President — Retail Stores
since July 2011. He served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Foot Locker U.S., Lady Foot Locker,
Kids Foot Locker, and Footaction from January 2010 to July 2011; President and Chief Executive Officer of
Foot Locker Europe from August 2007 to January 2010; and President and Chief Executive Officer of
Footlocker.com/Eastbay from April 2003 to August 2007.

Robert W. McHugh, age 53, has served as Executive Vice President — Operations Support since July 2011.
He served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from May 2009 to July 2011; and Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from November 2005 through April 2009.

Lauren B. Peters, age 50, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since July 2011.
She served as Senior Vice President — Strategic Planning from April 2002 to July 2011.

Gary M. Bahler, age 60, has served as Senior Vice President since August 1998, General Counsel since
February 1993 and Secretary since February 1990.

Jeffrey L. Berk, age 56, has served as Senior Vice President — Real Estate since February 2000.

Peter D. Brown, age 57, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer since
February 2011. He served as Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer and Investor Relations from
September 2006 to February 2011; and as Vice President — Investor Relations and Treasurer from
October 2001 to September 2006.

Giovanna Cipriano, age 42, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer since
May 2009. Ms. Cipriano served as Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer from November 2005
through April 2009.

Laurie J. Petrucci, age 53, has served as Senior Vice President — Human Resources since May 2001.

John A. Maurer, age 52, has served as Vice President, Treasurer and Investor Relations since
February 2011. Mr. Maurer served as Vice President and Treasurer from September 2006 to
February 2011. He served as Divisional Vice President and Assistant Treasurer from April 2006 to
September 2006.

There are no family relationships among the executive officers or directors of the Company.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Foot Locker, Inc. common stock (ticker symbol “FL”) is listed on The New York Stock Exchange as
well as on the Borse Stuttgart stock exchange in Germany. In addition, the stock is traded on the
Cincinnati stock exchange. At January 28, 2012, the Company had 18,209 shareholders of record owning
151,619,112 common shares.

The following table provides, for the period indicated, the intra-day high and low sales prices for the
Company’s common stock:

2011 2010
High Low High Low
15t Quarter $22.03 $17.21 $16.76 $11.30
2" Quarter 25.50 21.00 15.79 12.27
3™ Quarter 23.02 16.66 16.09 11.59
4™ Quarter 26.82 20.82 20.08 15.63

During each of the quarters of 2011 the Company declared dividends of $0.165 per share. The Board of
Directors reviews the dividend policy and rate, taking into consideration the overall financial and strategic
outlook for our earnings, liquidity and cash flow projections, as well as competitive factors. On
February 14, 2012, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.18 per share to be paid on
April 27, 2012. This dividend represents a 9 percent increase over the Company’s previous quarterly
per share amount.

The following table is a summary of our fourth quarter share repurchases:

Total Number of Approximate

Shares Dollar Value of
Total Purchased as Shares that may
Number of Average Part of Publicly yet be Purchased

Shares Price Paid Announced Under the

Date Purchased Purchased™® per Share™ Program® Program®
Oct. 30,2011 - Nov. 26, 2011 — — — $103,463,547
Nov. 27,2011 - Dec. 31, 2011 294,401 $23.84 289,100 $ 96,575,360
Jan.1, 2012 - Jan. 28, 2012 — — — $ 96,575,360
294,401 $23.84 289,100 $ 96,575,360

(1) These columns also reflect shares purchased in connection with stock swaps. The calculation of the average price paid per share
includes all fees, commissions, and other costs associated with the repurchase of such shares.

(2) On February 16, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the extension of the Company’s 2007 common share
repurchase program for an additional three years in the amount of $250 million. Through January 28, 2012, 8.1 million shares
of common stock were purchased under this program, for an aggregate purchase price of $153 million.

On February 14, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a new 3-year, $400 million share
repurchase program extending through January 2015, replacing the previous $250 million program which
terminated on that date.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative five-year total return to shareholders on Foot Locker, Inc.’s
common stock relative to the total returns of the S&P 400 Retailing Index and the Russell 2000 Index.

Indexed Share Price Performance
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The Company has previously used the Russell 2000 Index in its performance graph. However, due to the
increasing size of the Company’s market capitalization it was determined that the Russell Midcap Index is a
more appropriate benchmark as the median market capitalization is the closest in the Russell family of
indices to the Company’s. The next graph compares the cumulative five-year total return to shareholders
on Foot Locker, Inc.’s common stock relative to the total returns of the S&P 400 Retailing Index and
the Russell Midcap Index. It is the Company’s intention to use the Russell Midcap Index for future
performance graphs.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data below should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes thereto and other information contained elsewhere in this report.

($ in millions, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Summary of Continuing Operations
Sales $5,623 5,049 4,854 5,237 5,437
Gross margin 1,796 1,516 1,332 1,460 1,420
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,244 1,138 1,099 1,174 1,176
Impairment and other charges 5 10 41 259 128
Depreciation and amortization 110 106 112 130 166
Interest expense, net 6 9 10 5 1
Other income (4) (4) 3 (8) (D
Income (loss) from continuing operations, after-tax 278 169 47 (79) 43
Per Common Share Data

Basic earnings 1.81 1.08 0.30 (0.52) 0.29

Diluted earnings 1.80 1.07 0.30 (0.52) 0.28

Common stock dividends declared per share 0.66 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.50
Weighted-average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic earnings 153.0 155.7 156.0 154.0 154.0

Diluted earnings 1544 156.7  156.3 154.0 155.6
Financial Condition
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments $ 851 696 589 408 493
Merchandise inventories 1,069 1,059 1,037 1,120 1,281
Property and equipment, net 427 386 387 432 521
Total assets 3,050 2,896 2,816 2,877 3,243
Long-term debt 135 137 138 142 221
Total shareholders’ equity 2,110 2,025 1,948 1,924 2,261
Financial Ratios
Sales per average gross square foot™ $ 406 360 333 350 352
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)® 441 266 83 (95) (49)
EBIT margin® 78% 5.3 1.7 (1.8) (0.9)
Net income margin® 49% 3.3 1.0 (1.5) 0.8
Return on assets (ROA) 94% 59 1.7 (2.6) 1.3
Net debt capitalization percent® 36.0% 39.0 43.0 46.7 45.1
Current ratio 3.8 4.0 4.1 4.2 4.0
Other Data
Capital expenditures $ 152 97 89 146 148
Number of stores at year end 3,369 3,426 3,500 3,641 3,785
Total selling square footage at year end (in millions) 7.38 7.54 7.74 8.09 8.50
Total gross square footage at year end (in millions) 1245 12.64 12.96 13.50 14.12

(1) Calculated as Athletic Store sales divided by the average monthly ending gross square footage of the last thirteen months.
(2) Calculated using results from continuing operations.

(3) Represents total debt, net of cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments. Additionally, this calculation includes the
present value of operating leases, and accordingly is considered a non-GAAP measure.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Business Overview

Foot Locker, Inc, through its subsidiaries, operates in two reportable segments — Athletic Stores and
Direct-to-Customers. The Athletic Stores segment is one of the largest athletic footwear and apparel
retailers in the world, whose formats include Foot Locker, Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Champs
Sports, Footaction, and CCS. The Direct-to-Customers segment reflects CCS and Footlocker.com, Inc., which
sells, through its affiliates, including Eastbay, Inc., to customers through catalogs, mobile devices, and
Internet websites.

The Foot Locker brand is one of the most widely recognized names in the market segments in which the
Company operates, epitomizing high quality for the active lifestyle customer. This brand equity has aided
the Company’s ability to successfully develop and increase its portfolio of complementary retail store
formats, specifically Lady Foot Locker and Kids Foot Locker, as well as Footlocker.com, its
direct-to-customers business. Through various marketing channels, including broadcast, digital, print, and
sponsorships of various sporting events, the Company reinforces its image with a consistent message-
namely, that it is the destination for athletically inspired shoes and apparel with a wide selection of
merchandise in a full-service environment.

Store Profile

Square Footage

(in thousands)

January 29, January 28, Relocations/
2011 Opened Closed 2012 Remodels Selling Gross
Foot Locker U.S. 1,144 5 31 1,118 67 2,656 4,499
Foot Locker International 751 45 13 783 60 1,148 2,276
Lady Foot Locker 378 — 47 331 9 426 737
Kids Foot Locker 294 3 8 289 8 403 692
Footaction 307 1 16 292 14 846 1,351
Champs Sports 540 5 11 534 24 1,868 2,845
CCS 12 11 1 22 — 34 51
Total 3,426 70 127 3,369 182 7,381 12,451

Athletic Stores

The Company operates 3,369 stores in the Athletic Stores segment. The following is a brief description of
the Athletic Stores segment’s operating businesses:

Foot Locker — “Sneaker Central” — Foot Locker is a leading global athletic footwear and apparel retailer.
Its stores offer the latest in athletic-inspired performance products, manufactured primarily by the leading
athletic brands. Foot Locker offers products for a wide variety of activities including basketball, running,
and training. Its 1,901 stores are located in 23 countries including 1,118 in the United States, Puerto Rico,
U.S. Virgin Islands, and Guam, 129 in Canada, 563 in Europe, and a combined 91 in Australia and
New Zealand. The domestic stores have an average of 2,400 selling square feet and the international stores
have an average of 1,500 selling square feet.

Lady Foot Locker — “The Place for Her” — Lady Foot Locker is a leading U.S. retailer of athletic footwear,
apparel and accessories for active women. Its stores carry major athletic footwear and apparel brands, as
well as casual wear and an assortment of apparel designed for a variety of activities, including running,
walking, training, and fitness. Its 331 stores are located in the United States, Puerto Rico, and the
U.S. Virgin Islands, and have an average of 1,300 selling square feet.
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Kids Foot Locker — “Where Kids Come First” — Kids Foot Locker is a national children’s athletic retailer
that offers the largest selection of brand-name athletic footwear, apparel and accessories for children. Its
stores feature an environment geared to appeal to both parents and children. Its 289 stores are located in
the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands and have an average of 1,400 selling square feet

Footaction — “Head-to-Toe Sport Inspired Style” — Footaction is a national athletic footwear and apparel
retailer. The primary customers are young males that seek street-inspired athletic styles. Its 292 stores are
located throughout the United States and Puerto Rico and focus on marquee footwear and branded
apparel. The Footaction stores have an average of 2,900 selling square feet.

Champs Sports — “We Know Game” — Champs Sports is one of the largest mall-based specialty athletic
footwear and apparel retailers in North America. Its product categories include athletic footwear, apparel
and accessories, and a focused assortment of equipment. This combination allows Champs Sports to
differentiate itself from other mall-based stores by presenting complete product assortments in a select
number of sporting activities. Its 534 stores are located throughout the United States, Canada, Puerto Rico,
and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Champs Sports stores have an average of 3,500 selling square feet.

CCS — “We Are Board Culture” — CCS serves the needs of the 12 - 20 year old seeking an authentic board
lifestyle shop. CCS is anchored in skate but appealing to the surrounding culture. The CCS format offers
board lifestyle merchandise that will fit the needs of the customer all year long and stocks the best
selection of both core and lifestyle brands. This format complements the CCS catalog and Internet business,
which was acquired in November 2008. This concept was expanded to 22 stores in 2011, all of which are
located in the United States and average 1,500 selling square feet.

Direct-to-Customers

The Company’s Direct-to-Customers segment is multi-branded and multi-channeled. This segment sells,
through its affiliates, directly to customers through catalogs as well as its Internet and mobile websites.
Eastbay, one of the affiliates, is among the largest direct marketers in the United States, providing the high
school athlete with a complete sports solution including athletic footwear, apparel, equipment, team
licensed, and private-label merchandise. In 2008, the Company purchased CCS, an Internet and catalog
retailer of skateboard equipment, apparel, footwear, and accessories targeted primarily to teenaged boys.
The retail store operations of CCS are included in the Athletic Stores segment. The Direct-to-Customers
segment operates the websites for eastbay.com, final-score.com, and teamsales.eastbay.com. Additionally
this segment operates websites aligned with the brand names of its store banners (footlocker.com,
ladyfootlocker.com, kidsfootlocker.com, footaction.com, champssports.com, and ccs.com).

Franchise Operations

In 2006, the Company entered into a ten-year area development agreement with the Alshaya Trading Co.
W.L.L, for the operation of Foot Locker stores located within the Middle East, subject to certain
restrictions. Additionally, in 2007, the Company entered into a ten-year agreement with another
third party for the exclusive right to open and operate Foot Locker stores in the Republic of Korea.

A total of 34 franchised stores were operating at January 28, 2012. Royalty income from the franchised
stores was not significant for any of the periods presented. These stores are not included in the Company’s
operating store count above.

15



Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures

In the following tables, the Company has presented certain financial measures and ratios identified as
non-GAAP. The Company believes this non-GAAP information is a useful measure to investors because it
allows for a more direct comparison of the Company’s performance for 2011 as compared with 2010 and
is useful in assessing the Company’s progress in achieving its long-term financial objectives. The
following represents a reconciliation of the non-GAAP measures discussed throughout the Overview of
Consolidated Results:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Pre-tax income:
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $435 $ 257 $ 73
Pre-tax amounts excluded from GAAP:

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets 5 10 —

Impairment of assets — — 36

Reorganization costs = — 5

Impairment and other charges 5 10 41

Inventory reserve — recorded within cost of sales — — 14

Money market realized gain - recorded within other income = (2) =
Total pre-tax amounts excluded 5 8 55
Income from continuing operations before income taxes

(non-GAAP) $ 440 $ 265 $128
Calculation of Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT):
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $435 $ 257 $ 73
Interest expense, net _6 9 _10
EBIT $441 $ 266 $ 83
Income from continuing operations before income taxes

(non-GAAP) $440 $ 265 $128
Interest expense, net _6 9 ﬁ
EBIT (non-GAAP) $ 446 $ 274 $138
EBIT margin% 7.8% 5.3% 1.7%
EBIT margin% (non-GAAP) 7.9% 5.4% 2.8%
After-tax income:
Income from continuing operations $278 $ 169 $ 47
After-tax amounts excluded 3 4 34
Canadian tax rate changes excluded = — 4
Income from continuing operations after-tax (non-GAAP) $281 $ 173 $ 85
Net income margin% 4.9% 3.3% 1.0%
Net income margin% (non-GAAP) 5.0% 3.4% 1.8%
Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations $1.80 $ 1.07 $0.30
Impairment and other charges 0.02 0.04 0.16
Inventory reserve — — 0.06
Money-market realized gain — (0.01) —
Canadian tax rate changes = — 0.02
Income from continuing operations (non-GAAP) $1.82 $ 1.10 $0.54
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The Company estimates the tax effect of the non-GAAP adjustments by applying its effective tax rate to
deductible items. The gain recorded with respect to The Reserve International Liquidity Fund, Ltd. was
recorded with no tax expense due to the fact that the entity that held the investment has a zero statutory
tax rate. During 2009, the provincial tax rates in Canada were reduced, which resulted in a $4 million
reduction in the value of the Company’s net deferred tax assets.

When assessing Return on Invested Capital (“ROIC”), the Company adjusts its results to reflect its
operating leases as if they qualified for capital lease treatment. Operating leases are the primary financing
vehicle used to fund store expansion and, therefore, we believe that the presentation of these leases as
capital leases is appropriate. Accordingly, the asset base and net income amounts are adjusted to reflect
this in the calculation of ROIC. ROIC, subject to certain adjustments, is also used as a measure in executive
long-term incentive compensation.

The closest GAAP measure is Return on Assets (“ROA”) and is also represented below. ROA increased to
9.4 percent as compared with 5.9 percent in the prior year reflecting the Company’s overall
performance in 2011.

2011 2010 2009
ROAM 9.4% 5.9% 1.7%
ROIC% (non-GAAP)® 11.8% 8.3% 5.3%

(1) Represents income from continuing operations of $278 million, $169 million, and $47 million divided by average total assets of
$2,973 million, $2,856 million, and $2,847 million for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

(2) See below for the calculation of ROIC.

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

EBIT (non-GAAP) $ 446 $ 274 $ 138
+ Rent expense 544 522 526
- Estimated depreciation on capitalized operating leases® (389) (366) (370)
Net operating profit 601 430 294
- Adjusted income tax expense® (218) (153) (104)
= Adjusted return after taxes $ 383 $ 277 $ 190
Average total assets $ 2,973 $ 2,856 $ 2,847
- Average cash, cash equivalents and

short-term investments (774) (642) (499)
- Average non-interest bearing current liabilities (519) (461) (425)
- Average merchandise inventories (1,064) (1,048) (1,079)
+ Average estimated asset base of capitalized

operating leases® 1,429 1,443 1,500
+ 13-month average merchandise inventories 1,192 1,177 1,268
= Average invested capital $ 3,237 $ 3,325 $ 3,612
ROIC% 11.8% 8.3% 5.3%

(3) The determination of the capitalized operating leases and the adjustments to income have been calculated on a lease-by-lease
basis and have been consistently calculated in each of the years presented above. Capitalized operating leases represent the
best estimate of the asset base that would be recorded for operating leases as if they had been classified as capital or as if the
property were purchased.

(4) The adjusted income tax expense represents the marginal tax rate applied to net operating profit for each of the
periods presented.
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Overview of Consolidated Results

In March of 2010, the Company announced a strategic plan, which included a series of operating initiatives
and long-term financial objectives to achieve its vision of becoming the leading global retailer of
athletically inspired shoes and apparel. Several of those objectives were exceeded during 2011 and
progress was made towards attaining many of the metrics. In March 2012, an updated long-range plan and
new long-term financial objectives were announced in light of our progress over the first two years of our
long-range plan. Our updated objectives and 2011 results are presented below:

Prior Updated
Long-term Long-term
2011 Objectives Objectives
Sales (in millions) $5,623 $6,000 $7,500
Sales per gross square foot $ 406 $ 400 $ 500
EBIT margin (non-GAAP) 7.9% 8.0% 11.0%
Net income margin (non-GAAP) 5.0% 5.0% 7.0%
ROIC (non-GAAP) 11.8% 10.0% 14.0%

The Company recorded net income from continuing operations of $278 million, or $1.80 per diluted share
in 2011; this compares with $169 million, or $1.07 per diluted share, for the prior-year period. Included in
the results are impairment charges related to the CCS tradename intangible asset of $5 million and
$10 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Excluding these charges in both periods, as well as the money
market gain in 2010, non-GAAP diluted earnings per share increased by 65 percent to $1.82 per share in
2011 from $1.10 in 2010. Other highlights of our 2011 financial performance include:

e Sales increased by 11.4 percent and comparable-store sales increased by 9.8 percent as
compared with the corresponding prior-year period. This increase was in addition to the 2010
comparable-store increase of 5.8 percent, reflecting the success of our strategic plan and the
continuing favorable athletic trend.

e  Gross margin increased 190 basis points in 2011 as compared with 2010. The cost of
merchandise rate improved by 70 basis points for the same period, while our buyers and
occupancy expenses improved by 120 basis points reflecting improved leverage on higher sales.

e Selling, general and administrative expenses were 22.1 percent of sales, an improvement of
40 basis points as compared with the prior year.

e Cash and cash equivalents at January 28, 2012 were $851 million, representing an increase of
$155 million.

e  Cash flow provided from operations was $497 million representing an increase of $171 million as
compared with the prior year. This increase reflects the strong sales performance coupled with
improved merchandise management. Merchandise inventories, excluding foreign currency
fluctuations increased by 1.6 percent while sales, excluding foreign currency fluctuations,
increased by 9.7 percent.

e Capital expenditures during 2011 totaled $152 million and were primarily directed to
the remodeling or relocation of 182 stores, the build-out of 70 new stores, and
continued improvements to our websites’ features and functionality, furthering the cross
channel experience.

e Dividends totaling $101 million were declared and paid. Effective with the first quarter 2012
dividend payment, the dividend rate was increased by 9 percent to $0.18 per share.

e A total of $104 million, or 4.9 million shares, were repurchased as part of the previously
announced share repurchase program. On February 14, 2012, a new 3-year, $400 million share
repurchase program extending through January 2015 was approved.

¢ ROIC increased to 11.8 percent as compared with the prior-year result of 8.3 percent, reflecting
profitability improvements and a more efficient balance sheet.
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The following table represents a summary of sales and operating results, reconciled to income from
continuing operations before income taxes.

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Sales
Athletic Stores $5,110 $4,617 $4,448
Direct-to-Customers 513 432 406
$5,623 $5,049 $4,854
Operating Results
Athletic Stores™ $ 495 $ 329 $ 114
Direct-to-Customers® 45 30 32
540 359 146
Restructuring (charge) income® (1) — 1
Division profit 539 359 147
Less: Corporate expense® 102 97 67
Operating profit 437 262 80
Other income® 4 4 3
Earnings before interest expense and income taxes 441 266 83
Interest expense, net 6 9 10
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 435 $ 257 $ 73

(1) The year ended January 30, 2010 includes non-cash impairment charges totaling $32 million, which were recorded to
write-down long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold improvements at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot
Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports divisions.

(2) Included in the results for the year ended January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 are non-cash impairment charges of $5 million
and $10 million, respectively, to write down the CCS tradename intangible asset. Included in the results for the year ended
January 30, 2010 is a non-cash impairment charge of $4 million to write off software development costs.

(3) During the first quarter of 2011, the Company increased its 1993 Repositioning and 1991 Restructuring reserve by $1 million
for repairs necessary to one of the locations comprising this reserve. During the year ended January 30, 2010, the Company
adjusted its 1999 restructuring reserves to reflect a favorable lease termination. These amounts are included in selling, general,
and administrative expenses.

(4) During 2009, the Company restructured its organization by consolidating the Lady Foot Locker, Foot Locker U.S., Kids Foot
Locker, and Footaction businesses in addition to reducing corporate staff, resulting in a $5 million charge.

(5) Included in the year ended January 29, 2011 is a $2 million gain to reflect the Company’s settlement of its investment in the
Reserve International Liquidity Fund.

Sales

All references to comparable-store sales for a given period relate to sales from stores (including sales from
the Direct-to-Customers segment and sales from stores that have been relocated or remodeled during the
relevant periods) that are open at the period-end, that have been open for more than one year, and exclude
the effect of foreign currency fluctuations. Stores opened and closed during the period are not included.
Sales from acquired businesses that include the purchase of inventory are included in the computation of
comparable-store sales after 15 months of operations.

Sales in 2011 increased to $5,623 million, or by 11.4 percent as compared with 2010. Excluding the effect
of foreign currency fluctuations, sales increased 9.7 percent as compared with 2010. Comparable-store
sales increased by 9.8 percent. This increase primarily reflects higher footwear sales. Apparel and
accessories sales also increased, which represented approximately 24 percent of sales, reflecting a modest
increase over the corresponding prior-year period of 23 percent.

Sales of $5,049 million in 2010 increased by 4.0 percent from sales of $4,854 million in 2009. Excluding the
effect of foreign currency fluctuations, sales increased 4.6 percent as compared with 2009.
Comparable-store sales increased by 5.8 percent.
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Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 31.9 percent in 2011, increasing by 190 basis points as
compared with 2010. This increase reflected a 70 basis points improvement in the merchandise margin
rate, which is attributable to an improved inventory position, better merchandise flow, and lower
markdowns as the Company was less promotional during 2011. The effect of vendor allowances, as
compared with the prior year, contributed 10 basis points to this improvement. The increase in the gross
margin rate also included a decrease of 120 basis points in the occupancy and buyers salary expense rate
reflecting improved leverage on largely fixed costs.

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 30.0 percent in 2010 increasing 260 basis points as compared
with 2009. In 2009, the Company recorded a $14 million inventory reserve on certain aged apparel as part
of its new apparel strategy. Excluding this charge, gross margin would have increased by 230 basis points
as compared with 2009. This increase reflected an increase of 150 basis points in the merchandise margin
rate reflecting lower markdowns as the Company was less promotional during the year as compared with
the prior year. Lower vendor allowances during the current year, reflecting the overall lower promotional
activity, negatively affected gross margin by 10 basis points. The increase in the gross margin also reflected
a decrease of 80 basis points in the occupancy and buyers salary expense rate due to improved leverage
and expense reductions.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses increased by $106 million to $1,244 million in
2011, or by 9.3 percent, as compared with 2010. SG&A as a percentage of sales decreased to 22.1 percent
as compared with 22.5 percent in 2010. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations in 2011, SG&A
increased by $86 million. This increase primarily reflects higher variable expenses to support sales, such as
store wages and banking expenses. Also during 2011, the Company increased its marketing and
advertising spending by $25 million in order to support the Company’s strategic objective of
differentiating its formats.

SG&A expenses increased by $39 million to $1,138 million in 2010, or by 3.5 percent, as compared with
2009. SG&A as a percentage of sales decreased to 22.5 percent as compared with 22.6 percent in 2009, due
to expense management and the increase in sales. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations in
2010, SG&A increased by $47 million. This increase primarily reflects higher incentive compensation costs
totaling $45 million, partially offset by expense management efforts.

Corporate Expense

Corporate expense consists of unallocated general and administrative expenses as well as depreciation and
amortization related to the Company’s corporate headquarters, centrally managed departments,
unallocated insurance and benefit programs, certain foreign exchange transaction gains and losses, and
other items. Depreciation and amortization included in corporate expense was $11 million, $12 million,
and $13 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Corporate expense increased by $5 million to $102 million in 2011 as compared with 2010. The increase
represents primarily higher share-based compensation expense and miscellaneous professional fees.

Corporate expense increased by $30 million to $97 million in 2010 as compared with 2009. Incentive
compensation costs represented an increase of $29 million as a result of the Company’s outperformance as
compared with plan. Additionally, 2009 included a $5 million charge related to the reorganization of its
operations and corporate staff reductions.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization of $110 million increased by 3.8 percent in 2011 from $106 million in 2010.
Foreign currency fluctuations increased depreciation and amortization expense by $2 million.
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Depreciation and amortization of $106 million decreased by 5.4 percent in 2010 from $112 million in
2009. This decrease primarily reflects reduced depreciation and amortization resulting from store
long-lived asset impairment charges recorded in 2009. Additionally, foreign currency fluctuations reduced
depreciation and amortization expense by $1 million.

Interest Expense, Net

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Interest expense $ 13 $ 14 $ 13
Interest income ) (5 3
Interest expense, net $ 6 $ 9 $ 10
Weighted-average interest rate (excluding fees) 7.6% 7.6% 7.3%

The overall reduction in net interest expense in 2011 as compared with 2010 primarily reflected increased
income earned on higher cash and cash equivalent balances.

The reduction of net interest expense of $1 million in 2010 as compared with 2009 primarily related to
increased income earned on higher cash and cash equivalent balances, partially offset by an increase in
interest expense due to higher fees associated with the revolving credit facility.

The Company did not have any short-term borrowings for any of the periods presented.

Other Income

Other income was $4 million in both 2011 and 2010 and was $3 million in 2009. For 2011, other income
primarily includes $2 million of lease termination gains related to the sales of leasehold interests,
$1 million for insurance recoveries, as well as royalty income. For 2010, other income includes a $2 million
gain on its money-market investment, as well as royalty income, and gains on lease terminations related to
certain lease interests in Europe. Other income in 2009 primarily reflects $4 million related to gains from
insurance recoveries, gains on the purchase and retirement of bonds, and royalty income, partially offset
by foreign currency option contract premiums of $1 million.

Income Taxes

The effective tax rate for 2011 was 36.0 percent, as compared with 34.3 percent in 2010. The Company
regularly assesses the adequacy of the provisions for income tax contingencies in accordance with the
applicable authoritative guidance on accounting for income taxes. As a result, the reserves for
unrecognized tax benefits may be adjusted as a result of new facts and developments, such as changes to
interpretations of relevant tax law, assessments from taxing authorities, settlements with taxing
authorities, and lapses of statutes of limitation. The effective tax rate for 2011 includes reserve releases of
$3 million due to audit settlements and lapses of statutes of limitations as well as other true-up
adjustments. Excluding these items and the prior-year adjustments discussed below, the effective tax rate
increased primarily due to the higher proportion of income earned in higher tax jurisdictions in 2011.

The effective tax rate for 2010 was 34.3 percent, as compared with 36.0 percent in 2009. The effective tax
rate decreased primarily due to a benefit of $7 million from a favorable tax settlement offset in part by
$4 million charge recorded in the fourth quarter to correct a historical error in the calculation of income
taxes on amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss pertaining to the Company’s
Canadian pension plans. Additionally, the 2009 effective rate included Canadian provincial tax rate
changes that resulted in a $4 million expense arising from a reduction in the value of the Company’s net
deferred tax assets. Excluding these items, the effective rate increased as compared with the prior year
reflecting a higher proportion of income earned in higher tax jurisdictions.
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Segment Information

The Company’s two reportable segments, Athletic Stores and Direct-to-Customers, are based on its method
of internal reporting. The Company evaluates performance based on several factors, the primary financial
measure of which is division results. Division profit reflects income from continuing operations before
income taxes, corporate expense, non-operating income, and net interest expense.

Athletic Stores
2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Sales $5,110 $4,617 $4,448
Division profit $ 495 $ 329 $ 114
Division profit margin 9.7% 7.1% 2.6%
Number of stores at year end 3,369 3,426 3,500
Sales per average gross square foot $ 406 $ 360 $ 333

2011 compared with 2010

Athletic Stores sales of $5,110 million increased 10.7 percent in 2011, as compared with $4,617 million in
2010. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations, primarily related to the euro, sales from the
Athletic Stores segment increased by 8.9 percent in 2011. Comparable-store sales also increased
8.9 percent as compared with the prior year. The majority of the increase represented increased footwear
sales reflecting the continued success of key styles of technical, light-weight running and basketball
footwear. Apparel sales continue to benefit from offerings that coordinate with key footwear styles. All
formats within this segment experienced significant increases in sales as compared with the prior year,
except for Lady Foot Locker. While Foot Locker Europe’s comparable-stores sales were positive for the
fourth quarter and full-year of 2011, sales were negatively affected by the current economic conditions.
Lady Foot Locker’s sales declined in 2011, principally due to operating 47 fewer stores. This was coupled
with a decline in toning footwear sales, which negatively affected the results earlier in the year.
Management is performing a strategic review of the women'’s business and is developing various initiatives
intended to improve future performance.

Athletic Stores reported a division profit of $495 million in 2011 as compared with $329 million in 2010,
an increase of $166 million as compared with the corresponding prior-year period. Foreign currency
fluctuations positively affected division profit by approximately $8 million as compared with the
corresponding prior-year period. The increase primarily reflects the strong U.S. performance, led by Foot
Locker and Champs Sports, however all international locations also increased. Strong sales and improved
gross margin contributed to an overall profit flow-through of 33.7 percent.

2010 compared with 2009

Athletic Stores sales of $4,617 million increased 3.8 percent in 2010, as compared with $4,448 million in
2009. Excluding the effect of foreign currency fluctuations, primarily related to the euro, sales from the
Athletic Stores segment increased by 4.4 percent in 2010. Comparable-store sales for the Athletic Stores
segment increased 5.7 percent as compared with the prior year. The Company’s U.S. operations sales
increased 3.9 percent reflecting meaningful increases in all formats, except for Lady Foot Locker. Lady Foot
Locker was negatively affected by the lower demand for certain styles, in particular toning. Excluding the
effect of foreign currency fluctuations, international sales increased 5.5 percent in 2010 as compared with
2009. Foot Locker Europe’s sales reflected strong increases in men’s footwear and apparel.

Athletic Stores reported a division profit of $329 million in 2010 as compared with $114 million in 2009.
The 2009 results included impairment charges totaling $32 million, which were recorded to write down
long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold improvements, at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker,
Kids Foot Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports divisions for 787 stores. Additionally, in 2009 the
Company recorded a $14 million inventory reserve on certain aged apparel. Excluding these charges,
division profit increased by $169 million as compared with the corresponding prior-year period. This
increase reflects division profit gains in both the Company’s domestic and international operations.
Foreign currency fluctuations negatively affected division profit by approximately $4 million as compared
with the corresponding prior-year period.
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Direct-to-Customers

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Sales $513 $432 $406
Division profit $ 45 $ 30 $ 32
Division profit margin 8.8% 6.9% 7.9%

2011 compared with 2010

Direct-to-Customers sales increased 18.8 percent to $513 million in 2011, as compared with $432 million
in 2010. Internet sales increased by 21.9 percent to $457 million, as compared with Internet sales of
$375 million 2010. Internet sales primarily reflected the strong performance of the Eastbay website,
coupled with improved sales from the store-banner websites. Catalog sales decreased by 1.8 percent to
$56 million in 2011 from $57 million in 2010.

The Direct-to-Customers business generated division profit of $45 million in 2011, as compared with
$30 million in 2010. Division profit, as a percentage of sales, was 8.8 percent in 2011 and 6.9 percent in
2010. During the fourth quarters of 2011 and 2010, impairment charges of $5 million and $10 million,
respectively, were recorded to write down CCS intangible assets, specifically the non-amortizing
tradename. The impairments were primarily the result of reduced revenue projections. Excluding the
impairment charges in each of the periods, division profit increased by $10 million reflecting the strong
sales performance, partially offset by higher variable costs.

2010 compared with 2009

Direct-to-Customers sales increased 6.4 percent to $432 million in 2010, as compared with $406 million in
2009. Effective with the first quarter of 2010, CCS Internet and catalog sales have been included in the
computation of comparable-store sales. Internet sales increased by 9.0 percent to $375 million, as
compared with 2009 reflecting a strong sales performance through the Company’s store banner websites,
which benefited from improved functionality and more compelling product assortments. Catalog sales
decreased by 8.1 percent to $57 million in 2010 from $62 million in 2009.

The Direct-to-Customers business generated division profit of $30 million in 2010, as compared with
$32 million in 2009. Division profit, as a percentage of sales, was 6.9 percent in 2010 and 7.9 percent in
2009. Included in the 2010 division profit is a $10 million impairment charge, which was recorded to write
down CCS intangible assets. The impairment was primarily the result of reduced revenue projections.
Included in 2009 division profit is a $4 million impairment charge, which was recorded to write off certain
software development costs as a result of management’s decision to terminate the project. Excluding these
charges, division profit increased by $4 million as compared with the prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

The Company’s primary source of liquidity has been cash flow from operations, while the principal uses of
cash have been to: fund inventory and other working capital requirements; finance capital expenditures
related to store openings, store remodelings, Internet and mobile sites, information systems, and other
support facilities; make retirement plan contributions, quarterly dividend payments, and interest
payments; and fund other cash requirements to support the development of its short-term and long-term
operating strategies. The Company generally finances real estate with operating leases. Management
believes its cash, cash equivalents, future cash flow from operations, and the Company’s current revolving
credit facility will be adequate to fund these requirements.

As of January 28, 2012, the Company had $498 million of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign
jurisdictions. Because we plan to permanently reinvest our foreign earnings, in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
we have not provided for U.S. federal and state income taxes or foreign withholding taxes that may result
from future remittances of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Depending on the source,
amount, and timing of a repatriation, some tax may be payable. The Company believes that its cash
invested domestically, future domestic cash flows, and its current revolving credit agreement are sufficient
to satisfy domestic requirements.
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The Company may also from time to time repurchase its common stock or seek to retire or purchase
outstanding debt through open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, or otherwise. Such
repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, liquidity requirements, contractual
restrictions, and other factors. The amounts involved may be material. On February 14, 2012, the
Company’s Board of Directors approved a new 3-year, $400 million share repurchase program extending
through January 2015, replacing the previous $250 million program.

Any material adverse change in customer demand, fashion trends, competitive market forces, or customer
acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail locations, uncertainties related to the effect of
competitive products and pricing, the Company’s reliance on a few key vendors for a significant portion of
its merchandise purchases and risks associated with global product sourcing, economic conditions
worldwide, the effects of currency fluctuations, as well as other factors listed under the heading
“Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” could affect the ability of the Company to continue
to fund its needs from business operations.

Maintaining access to merchandise that the Company considers appropriate for its business may be subject
to the policies and practices of its key vendors. Therefore, the Company believes that it is critical to
continue to maintain satisfactory relationships with its key vendors. In both 2011 and 2010, the Company
purchased approximately 82 percent of its merchandise from its top five vendors and expects to continue
to obtain a significant percentage of its athletic product from these vendors in future periods.
Approximately 61 percent in 2011 and 63 percent in 2010 was purchased from one vendor — Nike, Inc.

The Company’s 2012 planned capital expenditures and lease acquisition costs are approximately
$160 million. Planned capital expenditures are $147 million and planned lease acquisition costs related to
the Company’s operations in Europe are $13 million. The Company’s planned capital expenditures include
$110 million related to modernizations of existing stores and the planned opening of 82 new stores, as
well as $37 million for the development of information systems and infrastructure. The Company has the
ability to revise and reschedule much of the anticipated capital expenditure program, should the
Company’s financial position require it.

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)

In addition to net cash provided by operating activities, the Company uses free cash flow as a useful
measure of performance and as an indication of the strength of the Company and its ability to generate
cash. The Company defines free cash flow as net cash provided by operating activities less capital
expenditures (which is classified as an investing activity). The Company believes the presentation of free
cash flow is relevant and useful for investors because it allows investors to evaluate the cash generated
from the Company’s underlying operations in a manner similar to the method used by management. Free
cash flow is not defined under U.S. GAAP. Therefore, it should not be considered a substitute for income or
cash flow data prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures used by other companies. It should not be inferred that the entire free cash flow amount is
available for discretionary expenditures.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the Company’s net cash flow provided by operating
activities, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure, to free cash flow.

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities of

continuing operations $ 497 $326 $346
Capital expenditures (152) 97) (89)
Free cash flow (non-GAAP) $ 345 $229 $257
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Operating Activities

Operating activities from continuing operations provided cash of $497 million in 2011 as compared with
$326 million in 2010. These amounts reflect income from continuing operations adjusted for non-cash
items and working capital changes. Non-cash impairment and other charges were $5 million and
$10 million for the years ending January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively, reflecting the CCS
tradename impairment charges. During 2011, the Company contributed $28 million to its U.S. and
Canadian qualified pension plans as compared with $32 million contributed in 2010. The change in
merchandise inventory, net of the change in accounts payable, as compared with the prior-year period,
reflects the continued improvement in flowing merchandise. The change in income tax receivables and
payables primarily reflects the receipt of a $46 million IRS refund resulting from a loss carryback.

Operating activities from continuing operations provided cash of $326 million in 2010 as compared with
$346 million in 2009. Non-cash impairment and other charges were $10 million and $36 million for the
years ending January 29, 2011 and January 30, 2010, respectively. The 2009 charges totaled $36 million,
comprised of $32 million to write-down long-lived assets such as store fixtures and leasehold
improvements at the Company’s Lady Foot Locker, Kids Foot Locker, Footaction, and Champs Sports
divisions and $4 million to write off software development costs. During 2010, the Company contributed
$32 million to its U.S. and Canadian qualified pension plans as compared with $100 million contributed in
2009. The change in merchandise inventory, net of the change in accounts payable, as compared with the
prior-year period, represents inventory required to support the favorable sales trend. During 2010, the
Company paid $24 million to settle the liability associated with the terminated European net investment
hedge, whereas in the prior-year period the Company terminated its interest rate swaps and received
$19 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities of the Company’s continuing operations was $149 million in 2011 as
compared with $87 million used in investing activities in 2010. Capital expenditures were $152 million,
primarily related to the remodeling of 182 stores, the build-out of 70 new stores, and various corporate
technology upgrades and e-commerce website enhancements, representing an increase of $55 million as
compared with the prior year.

Net cash used in investing activities of the Company’s continuing operations was $87 million in 2010 as
compared with $72 million used in investing activities in 2009. During 2010, the Company received
$9 million from the Reserve International Liquidity Fund representing further redemptions. Capital
expenditures were $97 million primarily related to store remodeling and to the development of
information systems and infrastructure, representing an increase of $8 million as compared with the
prior year.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations was $178 million in 2011 as compared with
$127 million in 2010. During 2011, the Company repurchased 4,904,100 shares of its common stock under
its common share repurchase program for $104 million. Additionally, the Company declared and paid
dividends totaling $101 million and $93 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively, representing a quarterly
rate of $0.165 and $0.15 per share in 2011 and 2010, respectively. During 2011 and 2010, the Company
received proceeds from the issuance of common stock and treasury stock in connection with the employee
stock programs of $22 million and $13 million, respectively. During 2011, in connection with stock option
exercises, the Company recorded excess tax benefits related to share-based compensation of $5 million as
a financing activity.
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Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations was $127 million in 2010 as compared with
$94 million in 2009. During 2010, the Company repurchased 3,215,000 shares of its common stock for
$50 million. Additionally, the Company declared and paid dividends totaling $93 million and $94 million in
2010 and 2009, respectively, representing a quarterly rate of $0.15 per share in both 2010 and 2009.
During 2010 and 2009, the Company received proceeds from the issuance of common stock and treasury
stock in connection with the employee stock programs of $13 million and $3 million, respectively. During
2010, in connection with stock option exercises, the Company recorded excess tax benefits related to
share-based compensation of $3 million as a financing activity.

Capital Structure

On January 27, 2012, the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement (the “2011
Restated Credit Agreement) with its banks, replacing the 2009 Credit Agreement. The 2011 Restated
Credit Agreement provides for a $200 million asset based revolving credit facility maturing on
January 27, 2017. In addition, during the term of the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement, the Company may
make up to four requests for additional credit commitments in an aggregate amount not to exceed $200
million. Interest is based on the LIBOR rate in effect at the time of the borrowing plus a 1.25 to 1.50
percent margin depending on certain provisions as defined in the 2011 Restated Credit Agreement.

The 2011 Restated Credit Agreement provides for a security interest in certain of the Company’s domestic
assets, including certain inventory assets, but excluding intellectual property. The Company is not required
to comply with any financial covenants as long as there are no outstanding borrowings. With regard to the
payment of dividends and share repurchases, there are no restrictions if the Company is not borrowing
and the payments are funded through cash on hand. If the Company is borrowing, Availability as of the end
of each fiscal month during the subsequent projected six fiscal months following the payment must be at
least 20 percent of the lesser of the Aggregate Commitments and the Borrowing Base (as defined in the
2011 Restated Credit Agreement). The Company’s management does not currently expect to borrow under
the facility in 2012, other than amounts used to support standby letters of credit.

Credit Rating

As of March 26, 2012, the Company’s corporate credit ratings from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s
Investors Service are BB and Ba3, respectively. In addition, Moody’s Investors Service has rated the
Company’s senior unsecured notes B1.

Debt Capitalization and Equity (non-GAAP Measure)

For purposes of calculating debt to total capitalization, the Company includes the present value of
operating lease commitments in total net debt. Total net debt including the present value of operating
leases is considered a non-GAAP financial measure. The present value of operating leases is discounted
using various interest rates ranging from 4.25 percent to 14.5 percent, which represent the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate at inception of the lease. Operating leases are the primary financing vehicle
used to fund store expansion and, therefore, we believe that the inclusion of the present value of operating
leases in total debt is useful to our investors, credit constituencies, and rating agencies.
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The following table sets forth the components of the Company’s capitalization, both with and without the
present value of operating leases:

2011 2010
(in millions)

Long-term debt $ 135 $ 137
Present value of operating leases 1,905 1,852

Total debt including the present value of operating leases 2,040 1,989
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents 851 696

Total net debt including the present value of operating leases 1,189 1,293
Shareholders’ equity 2,110 2,025
Total capitalization $3,299 $3,318
Total net debt capitalization percent —% —%
Total net debt capitalization percent including the present value of

operating leases (non-GAAP) 36.0% 39.0%

The Company increased cash and cash equivalents by $155 million during 2011, the result of strong cash
flow generation from operating activities. The change in total debt including the present value of the
operating leases, as compared with the prior-year period, primarily reflects the effect of lease renewals,
offset, in part, by store closures and the effect of foreign currency fluctuations. Including the present value
of operating leases, the Company’s net debt capitalization percent decreased 300 basis points in 2011.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables represent the scheduled maturities of the Company’s contractual cash obligations and

other commercial commitments at January 28, 2012:
Payments Due by Fiscal Period

2017 and
Contractual Cash Obligations Total 2012 2013 -2014 2015 - 2016 Beyond
(in millions)
Long-term debt™ $ 230 $ 11 $ 22 $ 22 $175
Operating leases® 2,517 478 786 581 672
Other long-term liabilities® — = = = =
Total contractual cash obligations $2,747 $489 $808 $603 $847
Total Payments Due by Fiscal Period
Amounts 2017 and
Other Commercial Commitments Committed 2012 2013 -2014 2015 - 2016 Beyond
(in millions)
Unused line of credit™® $ 199 $ — $§ — $199 $ —
Standby letters of credit 1 — — 1
Purchase commitments®’ 1,801 1,801 — — —
Other(® 27 17 8 1 1
Total commercial commitments $2,028 $1,818 $ 8 $201 $ 1

(1) The amounts presented above represent the contractual maturities of the Company’s long-term debt, including interest;
however, it excludes the unamortized gain of the interest rate swap of $15 million. Additional information is included in the
Long-Term Debt note under “Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(2) The amounts presented represent the future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases. In addition to
minimum rent, certain of the Company’s leases require the payment of additional costs for insurance, maintenance, and other
costs. These costs have historically represented approximately 25 to 30 percent of the minimum rent amount. These additional
amounts are not included in the table of contractual commitments as the timing and/or amounts of such payments are
unknown.

(3) The Company’s other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at January 28, 2012 primarily comprise pension and
postretirement benefits, deferred rent liability, income taxes, workers’ compensation and general liability reserves, and various
other accruals. Other than this liability, other amounts (including the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits of $65 million) have
been excluded from the above table as the timing and/or amount of any cash payment is uncertain. The timing of the remaining
amounts that are known has not been included as they are minimal and not useful to the presentation. Additional information is
included in the Other Liabilities, Financial Instruments and Risk Management, and Retirement Plans and Other Benefits notes
under “Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(4) Represents the unused domestic lines of credit pursuant to the Company’s $200 million revolving credit agreement. The
Company’s management currently does not expect to borrow under the facility in 2012, other than amounts used to support
standby letters of credit.
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(5) Represents open purchase orders, as well as other commitments for merchandise purchases, at January 28, 2012. The Company
is obligated under the terms of purchase orders; however, the Company is generally able to renegotiate the timing and quantity
of these orders with certain vendors in response to shifts in consumer preferences.

(6) Represents payments required by non-merchandise purchase agreements.

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet financing, other than operating leases entered into in
the normal course of business as disclosed above, or unconsolidated special purpose entities. The
Company does not participate in transactions that generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or
financial partnerships, including variable interest entities. The Company’s policy prohibits the use of
derivatives for which there is no underlying exposure.

In connection with the sale of various businesses and assets, the Company may be obligated for certain
lease commitments transferred to third parties and pursuant to certain normal representations,
warranties, or indemnifications entered into with the purchasers of such businesses or assets. Although
the maximum potential amounts for such obligations cannot be readily determined, management believes
that the resolution of such contingencies will not significantly affect the Company’s consolidated financial
position, liquidity, or results of operations. The Company is also operating certain stores for which lease
agreements are in the process of being negotiated with landlords. Although there is no contractual
commitment to make these payments, it is likely that leases will be executed.

Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s responsibility for integrity and objectivity in the preparation and presentation of the
Company’s financial statements requires diligent application of appropriate accounting policies.
Generally, the Company’s accounting policies and methods are those specifically required by U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Included in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies note
in “Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” is a summary of the Company’s
most significant accounting policies. In some cases, management is required to calculate amounts based on
estimates for matters that are inherently uncertain. The Company believes the following to be the most
critical of those accounting policies that necessitate subjective judgments.

Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories for the Company’s Athletic Stores are valued at the lower of cost or market using
the retail inventory method (“RIM”). The RIM is commonly used by retail companies to value inventories
at cost and calculate gross margins due to its practicality. Under the retail method, cost is determined by
applying a cost-to-retail percentage across groupings of similar items, known as departments. The
cost-to-retail percentage is applied to ending inventory at its current owned retail valuation to determine
the cost of ending inventory on a department basis. The RIM is a system of averages that requires
management’s estimates and assumptions regarding markups, markdowns and shrink, among others, and
as such, could result in distortions of inventory amounts.

Significant judgment is required for these estimates and assumptions, as well as to differentiate between
promotional and other markdowns that may be required to correctly reflect merchandise inventories at
the lower of cost or market. The Company provides reserves based on current selling prices when the
inventory has not been marked down to market. The failure to take permanent markdowns on a timely
basis may result in an overstatement of cost under the retail inventory method. The decision to take
permanent markdowns includes many factors, including the current environment, inventory levels, and
the age of the item. Management believes this method and its related assumptions, which have been
consistently applied, to be reasonable.

Vendor Reimbursements

In the normal course of business, the Company receives allowances from its vendors for markdowns taken.
Vendor allowances are recognized as a reduction in cost of sales in the period in which the markdowns are
taken. Vendor allowances contributed 30 basis points to the 2011 gross margin rate. The Company also
has volume-related agreements with certain vendors, under which it receives rebates based on fixed
percentages of cost purchases. These volume-related rebates are recorded in cost of sales when the
product is sold and were not significant to the 2011 gross margin rate.
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The Company receives support from some of its vendors in the form of reimbursements for cooperative
advertising and catalog costs for the launch and promotion of certain products. The reimbursements are
agreed upon with vendors for specific advertising campaigns and catalogs. Cooperative income, to the
extent that it reimburses specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to date, is recorded in SG&A
in the same period as the associated expenses are incurred. Cooperative reimbursements amounted to
approximately 18 percent and 11 percent of total advertising and catalog costs, respectively, in 2011.
Reimbursements received that are in excess of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to date
are recognized as a reduction to the cost of merchandise and are reflected in cost of sales as the
merchandise is sold and were not significant in 2011.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company recognizes an impairment loss when circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
long-lived tangible and intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. Management’s policy in
determining whether an impairment indicator exists, a triggering event, comprises measurable operating
performance criteria at the division level as well as qualitative measures. If an analysis is necessitated by
the occurrence of a triggering event, the Company uses assumptions, which are predominately identified
from the Company’s strategic long-range plans, in determining the impairment amount. In the calculation
of the fair value of long-lived assets, the Company compares the carrying amount of the asset with the
estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset. If the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the estimated expected undiscounted future cash flows, the Company measures the amount of the
impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the asset with its estimated fair value. The estimation of
fair value is measured by discounting expected future cash flows at the Company’s weighted-average cost
of capital. Management believes its policy is reasonable and is consistently applied. Future expected cash
flows are based upon estimates that, if not achieved, may result in significantly different results.

The Company performs an impairment review of its goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives if
impairment indicators arise and, at a minimum, annually. We consider many factors in evaluating whether
the carrying value of goodwill may not be recoverable, including declines in stock price and market
capitalization in relation to the book value of the Company and macroeconomic conditions affecting retail.
The Company has chosen to perform this review at the beginning of each fiscal year, and it is done in a
two-step approach. The initial step requires that the carrying value of each reporting unit be compared
with its estimated fair value. The second step —to evaluate goodwill of a reporting unit for
impairment — is only required if the carrying value of that reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value.
The Company used a combination of a discounted cash flow approach and market-based approach to
determine the fair value of a reporting unit. The determination of discounted cash flows of the reporting
units and assets and liabilities within the reporting units requires us to make significant estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions primarily include, but are not limited to, the discount rate,
terminal growth rates, earnings before depreciation and amortization, and capital expenditures forecasts.
The market approach requires judgment and uses one or more methods to compare the reporting unit
with similar businesses, business ownership interests or securities that have been sold. Due to the
inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company evaluated the merits of each significant assumption, both individually and in the aggregate,
used to determine the fair value of the reporting units, as well as the fair values of the corresponding
assets and liabilities within the reporting units, and concluded they are reasonable and are consistent with
prior valuations.

Owned trademarks and tradenames that have been determined to have indefinite lives are not subject to
amortization but are reviewed at least annually for potential impairment. The fair values of purchased
intangible assets are estimated and compared to their carrying values. We estimate the fair value of these
intangible assets based on an income approach using the relief-from-royalty method. This methodology
assumes that, in lieu of ownership, a third party would be willing to pay a royalty in order to exploit the
related benefits of these types of assets. This approach is dependent on a number of factors, including
estimates of future growth and trends, royalty rates in the category of intellectual property, discount rates,
and other variables. We base our fair value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable, but
which are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those estimates.
We recognize an impairment loss when the estimated fair value of the intangible asset is less than the
carrying value.
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The Company’s review of goodwill did not result in any impairment charges for the years ended
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 as the fair value of each of the reporting units substantially exceeds
its carrying value.

The Company recorded impairment charges of $5 million and $10 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively,
related to its CCS tradename, primarily as a result of reduced revenue projections for this business.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company estimates the fair value of options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
Company estimates the expected term of options granted using its historical exercise and post-vesting
employment termination patterns, which the Company believes are representative of future behavior.
Changing the expected term by one year changes the fair value by 7 to 9 percent depending if the change
was an increase or decrease to the expected term. The Company estimates the expected volatility of its
common stock at the grant date using a weighted-average of the Company’s historical volatility and
implied volatility from traded options on the Company’s common stock. A 50 basis point change in
volatility would have a 1 percent change to the fair value. The risk-free interest rate assumption is
determined using the Federal Reserve nominal rates for U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with maturities
similar to those of the expected term of the award being valued. The expected dividend yield is derived
from the Company’s historical experience. A 50 basis point change to the dividend yield would change the
fair value by approximately 4 percent. The Company records stock-based compensation expense only for
those awards expected to vest using an estimated forfeiture rate based on its historical pre-vesting
forfeiture data, which it believes are representative of future behavior, and periodically will revise those
estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Black-Scholes option
pricing valuation model requires the use of subjective assumptions. Changes in these assumptions can
materially affect the fair value of the options. The Company may elect to use different assumptions under
the Black-Scholes option pricing model in the future if there is a difference between the assumptions used
and the actual factors that become known over time.

Pension and Postretirement Liabilities

The Company determines its obligations for pension and postretirement liabilities based upon
assumptions related to discount rates, expected long-term rates of return on invested plan assets, salary
increases, age, and mortality, among others. Management reviews all assumptions annually with its
independent actuaries, taking into consideration existing and future economic conditions and the
Company’s intentions with regard to the plans.

Long-Term Rate of Return Assumption — The expected rate of return on plan assets is the long-term rate
of return expected to be earned on the plans’ assets and is recognized as a component of pension expense.
The rate is based on the plans’ weighted-average target asset allocation, as well as historical and future
expected performance of those assets. The target asset allocation is selected to obtain an investment
return that is sufficient to cover the expected benefit payments and to reduce future contributions by the
Company. The expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed annually and revised, as necessary, to
reflect changes in the financial markets and our investment strategy. The weighted-average long-term rate
of return used to determine 2011 pension expense was 6.59 percent. A decrease of 50 basis points in the
weighted-average expected long-term rate of return would have increased 2011 pension expense by
approximately $3 million. The actual return on plan assets in a given year typically differs from the
expected long-term rate of return, and the resulting gain or loss is deferred and amortized into expense
over the average life expectancy of its inactive participants.
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Discount Rate — An assumed discount rate is used to measure the present value of future cash flow
obligations of the plans and the interest cost component of pension expense and postretirement income.
The cash flows are then discounted to their present value and an overall discount rate is determined. In
2011, the Company changed how the discount rate was selected to measure the present value of U.S.
benefit obligations from the Citibank Pension Discount curve to Towers Watson’s Bond:Link model. The
current discount rate is determined by reference to the Bond:Link interest rate model based upon a
portfolio of highly rated U.S. corporate bonds with individual bonds that are theoretically purchased to
settle the plan’s anticipated cash outflows. The discount rate selected to measure the present value of the
Company’s Canadian benefit obligations was developed by using the plan’s bond portfolio indices, which
match the benefit obligations.

The fluctuations in stock and bond markets could cause actual investment results to be significantly
different from those assumed, and therefore, significantly impact the valuation of the assets in our pension
trust. The weighted-average discount rates used to determine the 2011 benefit obligations related to the
Company’s pension and postretirement plans were 4.16 percent and 4.00 percent, respectively. A decrease
of 50 basis points in the weighted-average discount rate would have increased the accumulated benefit
obligation of the pension plans at January 28, 2012 by approximately $32 million, and would have
increased the accumulated benefit obligation on the postretirement plan by approximately $1 million. Such
a decrease would not have significantly changed 2011 pension expense or postretirement income.

The Company maintains two postretirement medical plans, one covering executive officers and certain key
employees of the Company, (“SERP Medical Plan”), and the other covering all other associates. With
respect to the SERP Medical Plan, a one percent change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would
change this plan’s accumulated benefit obligation by approximately $2 million. With respect to the
postretirement medical plan covering all other associates, there is limited risk to the Company for
increases in health care costs since, beginning in 2001, new retirees have assumed the full expected costs
and then-existing retirees have assumed all increases in such costs.

The Company expects to record postretirement income of approximately $4 million and pension expense
of approximately $17 million in 2012.

Income Taxes

In accordance with GAAP, deferred tax assets are recognized for tax credit and net operating loss
carryforwards, reduced by a valuation allowance, which is established when it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management is required to estimate
taxable income for future years by taxing jurisdiction and to use its judgment to determine whether or not
to record a valuation allowance for part or all of a deferred tax asset. Estimates of taxable income are based
upon the Company’s strategic long-range plans. A one percent change in the Company’s overall statutory
tax rate for 2011 would have resulted in a $7 million change in the carrying value of the net deferred tax
asset and a corresponding charge or credit to income tax expense depending on whether the tax rate
change was a decrease or an increase.

The Company has operations in multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions.
Tax audits by their nature are often complex and can require several years to resolve. Accruals of tax
contingencies require management to make estimates and judgments with respect to the ultimate outcome
of tax audits. Actual results could vary from these estimates.

The Company expects its 2012 effective tax rate to approximate 37 percent. The actual rate will vary
depending primarily on the percentage of the Company’s income earned in the United States as compared
with its international operations.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, that is effective in
2012. The revised standard is intended to reduce cost and complexity of the annual goodwill impairment
test by providing entities an option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further
impairment testing is necessary. We do not believe that the adoption of this ASU will have a significant
effect on our results of operations or financial position.

Other recently issued accounting pronouncements did not, or are not believed by management to, have a
material effect on the Company’s present or future consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Other
than statements of historical facts, all statements which address activities, events, or developments that
the Company anticipates will or may occur in the future, including, but not limited to, such things as future
capital expenditures, expansion, strategic plans, financial objectives, dividend payments, stock
repurchases, growth of the Company’s business and operations, including future cash flows, revenues, and
earnings, and other such matters, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
based on many assumptions and factors which are detailed in the Company’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including the effects of currency fluctuations, customer demand, fashion trends,
competitive market forces, uncertainties related to the effect of competitive products and pricing,
customer acceptance of the Company’s merchandise mix and retail locations, the Company’s reliance on a
few key vendors for a majority of its merchandise purchases (including a significant portion from one key
vendor), pandemics and similar major health concerns, unseasonable weather, further deterioration of
global financial markets, economic conditions worldwide, further deterioration of business and economic
conditions, any changes in business, political and economic conditions due to the threat of future terrorist
activities in the United States or in other parts of the world and related U.S. military action overseas, the
ability of the Company to execute its business and strategic plans effectively with regard to each of its
business units, and risks associated with global product sourcing, including political instability, changes in
import regulations, and disruptions to transportation services and distribution.

For additional discussion on risks and uncertainties that may affect forward-looking statements, see “Risk
Factors” in Part I, Item 1A. Any changes in such assumptions or factors could produce significantly
different results. The Company undertakes no obligation to update forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Information regarding foreign exchange risk management is included in the Financial Instruments and Risk

Management note under “Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Foot Locker, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Foot Locker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended January 28, 2012. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Foot Locker, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 28, 2012 and
January 29, 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended January 28, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), Foot Locker, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 28, 2012,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 26, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

KPMe LLP

New York, New York
March 26,2012
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales

Cost of sales

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Impairment and other charges

Interest expense, net

Other income

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax expense
Income from continuing operations

Income on disposal of discontinued operations, net of
income tax benefit of $—, $—, and $1, respectively
Net income

Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income

2011 2010 2009
(in millions, except per share amounts)
$5,623 $5,049 $4,854
3,827 3,533 3,522
1,244 1,138 1,099
110 106 112

5 10 41

6 9 10
(4) 4) (3)
5,188 4,792 4,781
435 257 73
157 88 26
278 169 47
— — 1

$ 278 $ 169 $ 48
$ 1.81 $ 1.08 $ 0.30
$ 1.81 $ 1.08 $ 0.30
$ 1.80 $ 1.07 $ 0.30
$ 1.80 $ 1.07 $ 0.30

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Net income $278 $169 $ 48
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment:
Translation adjustment arising during the period, net of tax (23) 11 65
Cash flow hedges:
Change in fair value of derivatives, net of income tax (2) 1 (2)
Pension and postretirement adjustments:
Net actuarial gain (loss) and prior service cost arising during

the year, net of income tax benefits of $11, $1, and $4 million,

respectively (16) 7 (12)
Amortization of net actuarial gain/loss and prior service cost

included in net periodic benefit costs, net of income tax

expense of $3, $3, and $2 million, respectively 6 8 4
Available for sale securities:
Unrealized gain — — 3
Comprehensive income $243 $196 $106

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Merchandise inventories
Other current assets

Property and equipment, net
Deferred taxes

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net
Other assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities

Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity

2011

2010

(in millions)

$ 851
1,069
159
2,079
427
284

$ 240
308
548
135
257

2,110
$3,050

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ 696
1,059
179
1,934
386
296

$ 223
266
489
137
245

2,025
$2,896




FOOT LOCKER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional Paid-In Accumulated
Capital & Other Total
Common Stock Treasury Stock Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Earnings Loss Equity
(shares in thousands, amounts in millions)

Balance at January 31, 2009 159,599 $691 (4,681) $(102)  $1,581 $(246) $1,924
Restricted stock issued 1,004 — — — —
Issued under director and stock plans 664 6 — — 6
Share-based compensation expense — 12 — — 12
Forfeitures of restricted stock — — (10) — —
Shares of common stock used to satisfy

tax withholding obligations — — (32) (1) 1)
Acquired in exchange of stock options — — 3) — —
Net income 48 48
Cash dividends declared on common

stock ($0.60 per share) 94) (94)
Translation adjustment, net of tax 65 65
Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax 2) (2)
Pension and post-retirement

adjustments, net of tax (13) (13)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

securities, with no tax expense 3 3
Balance at January 30, 2010 161,267 $709 (4,726) $(103)  $1,535 $(193) $1,948
Restricted stock issued 205 — — —
Issued under director and stock plans 1,187 10 — — 10
Share-based compensation expense — 13 — — 13
Total tax benefit from exercise of

options — 2 — — 2
Forfeitures of restricted stock — 1 (50) — 1
Shares of common stock used to satisfy

tax withholding obligations — — (292) (4) (4)
Acquired in exchange of stock options — — (34) (1 (D
Share repurchases — — (3,215) (50) (50)
Reissued under employee stock

purchase plan — — 278 6 6
Net income 169 169
Cash dividends declared on common

stock ($0.60 per share) 93) (93)
Translation adjustment, net of tax 11 11
Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax 1 1
Pension and post-retirement

adjustments, net of tax 12 12
Balance at January 29, 2011 162,659 $735 (8,039) $(152) $1,611 $(169) $2,025
Restricted stock issued 242 — — — —
Issued under director and stock plans 1,559 19 — — 19
Share-based compensation expense — 18 — — 18
Total tax benefit from exercise of

options — 6 — — 6
Forfeitures of restricted stock — 1 (60) — 1
Shares of common stock used to satisfy

tax withholding obligations — — (140) 3) 3)
Acquired in exchange of stock options — — (34) (1) (1)
Share repurchases — — (4,904) (104) (104)
Reissued under employee stock

purchase plan — — 336 7 7
Net income 278 278
Cash dividends declared on common

stock ($0.66 per share) (101) (101)
Translation adjustment, net of tax (23) (23)
Change in cash flow hedges, net of tax (2) (2)
Pension and post-retirement

adjustments, net of tax (10) (10)
Balance at January 28,2012 164,460 $779 (12,841)  $(253) $1,788 $(204) $2,110

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

From Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities of continuing operations:
Discontinued operations, net of tax
Non-cash impairment and other charges
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Deferred tax provision
Qualified pension plan contributions
Change in assets and liabilities:
Merchandise inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Income tax receivables and payables
Payment on the settlement of the net investment hedge
Proceeds from the termination of interest rate swaps
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing
operations

From Investing Activities

Gain from lease terminations

Gain from insurance recoveries

Sales of short-term investments

Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations

From Financing Activities

Reduction in long-term debt

Dividends paid on common stock

Issuance of common stock

Purchase of treasury shares

Treasury stock reissued under employee stock plan

Excess tax benefits on share-based compensation

Net cash used in financing activities of continuing operations

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Net Cash used by Discontinued Operations

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Cash Paid During the Year:
Interest
Income taxes

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

$ 278 $ 169 $ 48
— — (1)

5 10 36

110 106 112
18 13 12

29 84 2
(28) (32) (100)
(17) (19) 111
19 7 23
38 35 (30)
24 (33) 27

— (24) —

— — 19
_21 10 _ 87
497 326 346
2 1 —

1 — 1

— 9 16
(152) (97) (89)
(149) (87) (72)
— — (3)
(101) 93) (94)
18 10 3
(104) (50) —
4 3 —
__5 3 =
am @ (99
ay 2 _ 18
= — (1)
155 114 197
696 582 385
$851 5696  $582
$ 12 $ 12 $ 12
$ 143 $ 53 $ 19

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Foot Locker, Inc. and its domestic and
international subsidiaries (the “Company”), all of which are wholly owned. All significant intercompany
amounts have been eliminated. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions
relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Reporting Year

The reporting period for the Company is the Saturday closest to the last day in January. Fiscal years 2011,
2010, and 2009 represent the 52 week periods ending January 28, 2012, January 29, 2011, and
January 30, 2010, respectively. References to years in this annual report relate to fiscal years rather than
calendar years.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from retail stores is recognized at the point of sale when the product is delivered to customers.
Internet and catalog sales revenue is recognized upon estimated receipt by the customer. Sales include
shipping and handling fees for all periods presented. Sales include merchandise, net of returns, and
exclude taxes. The Company provides for estimated returns based on return history and sales levels.
Revenue from layaway sales is recognized when the customer receives the product, rather than when the
initial deposit is paid.

Gift Cards

The Company sells gift cards to its customers, which do not have expiration dates. Revenue from gift card
sales is recorded when the gift cards are redeemed or when the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed
by the customer is remote and there is no legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards to
the relevant jurisdictions, referred to as breakage. The Company has determined its gift card breakage rate
based upon historical redemption patterns. Historical experience indicates that after 12 months the
likelihood of redemption is deemed to be remote. Gift card breakage income is included in selling, general
and administrative expenses and totaled $4 million, $2 million, and $4 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively. Unredeemed gift cards are recorded as a current liability.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Company has selected to present the operations of the discontinued businesses as one line in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. For all the periods presented this caption includes only operating
activities.

Store Pre-Opening and Closing Costs

Store pre-opening costs are charged to expense as incurred. In the event a store is closed before its lease
has expired, the estimated post-closing lease exit costs, less the sublease rental income, is provided for
once the store ceases to be used.

Advertising Costs and Sales Promotion

Advertising and sales promotion costs are expensed at the time the advertising or promotion takes place,
net of reimbursements for cooperative advertising. Advertising expenses also include advertising costs as
required by some of the Company’s mall-based leases. Cooperative advertising reimbursements earned for
the launch and promotion of certain products agreed upon with vendors is recorded in the same period as
the associated expenses are incurred.
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Reimbursement received in excess of expenses incurred related to specific, incremental, and identifiable
advertising costs, is accounted for as a reduction to the cost of merchandise, which is reflected in cost of
sales as the merchandise is sold.

Advertising costs, which are included as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, were
as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Advertising expenses $121 $ 97 $ 94
Cooperative advertising reimbursements _(22) (23) _(25)
Net advertising expense $ 99 $74 $ 69

Catalog Costs

Catalog costs, which primarily comprise paper, printing, and postage, are capitalized and amortized over
the expected customer response period related to each catalog, which is generally 90 days. Cooperative
reimbursements earned for the promotion of certain products are agreed upon with vendors and are
recorded in the same period as the associated catalog expenses are amortized. Prepaid catalog costs
totaled $3 million and $4 million at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively.

Catalog costs, which are included as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses, were
as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)
Catalog costs $ 44 $ 45 $ 48
Cooperative reimbursements (5 (5) (4)
Net catalog expense $ 39 $ 40 $ 44

Earnings Per Share

The Company accounts for and discloses earnings per share using the treasury stock method. Basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing reported net income for the period by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding at the end of the period. Restricted stock awards, which contain
non-forfeitable rights to dividends, are considered participating securities and are included in the
calculation of basic earnings per share. Diluted earnings per share reflects the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period used in the basic earnings per share computation plus
dilutive common stock equivalents. The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions, except per share data)

Net income from continuing operations $ 278 $ 169 $ 47

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 153.0 155.7 156.0

Basic Earnings per share from continuing operations $ 1.81 $ 1.08 $ 0.30

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 153.0 155.7 156.0

Dilutive effect of potential common shares 1.4 1.0 0.3
Weighted-average common shares outstanding

assuming dilution 154.4 156.7 156.3

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $ 1.80 $ 1.07 $ 0.30
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FOOT LOCKER, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

Potential common shares include the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock units. Options to
purchase 3.8 million, 4.5 million, and 6.3 million shares of common stock at January 28, 2012,
January 29, 2011, and January 30, 2010, respectively, were not included in the computations because the
exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of the common shares and,
therefore, the effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive. Contingently issuable shares of 0.9 million
have not been included as the vesting conditions have not been satisfied.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense in the financial statements for share-based awards based
on the grant date fair value of those awards. Additionally, stock-based compensation expense includes an
estimate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is recognized over the requisite service periods of the awards. See
Note 21, Share-Based Compensation, for information on the assumptions the Company used to calculate the
fair value of share-based compensation.

Upon exercise of stock options, issuance of restricted stock or units, or issuance of shares under the
employees stock purchase plan, the Company will issue authorized but unissued common stock or use
common stock held in treasury. The Company may make repurchases of its common stock from time to
time, subject to legal and contractual restrictions, market conditions, and other factors.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 were $830 million and $675 million,
respectively. Included in these amounts are $191 million and $165 million of short-term deposits as of
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively. The Company considers all highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, including commercial paper and money market funds, to
be cash equivalents. Additionally, amounts due from third party credit card processors for the settlement
of debit and credit card transactions are included as cash equivalents as they are generally collected within
three business days.

Investments

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and are not reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations until a sale transaction occurs or when declines in fair value are
deemed to be other-than-temporary. The Company routinely reviews available-for-sale securities for
other-than-temporary declines in fair value below the cost basis, and when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value of a security may not be recoverable, the security is written
down to fair value. The Company’s auction rate security was valued at $5 million for both January 28, 2012
and January 29, 2011. See Note 19, Fair Value Measurements, for further discussion of these investments.

Merchandise Inventories and Cost of Sales

Merchandise inventories for the Company’s Athletic Stores are valued at the lower of cost or market using
the retail inventory method. Cost for retail stores is determined on the last-in,